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          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing. My name is John Liu. I

          4  have the privilege of Chairing the Transportation

          5  Committee of the City Council.

          6                 Today this Committee will, there are

          7  a number of items on our agenda, we will take a vote

          8  on proposed Intro. No. 312-A. This bill would fix an

          9  oversight in the law that happened when parking

         10  violations were raised substantially in 2002 and

         11  2004. Although parking fines were raised, doubled in

         12  many cases, the threshold about which cars with

         13  outstanding parking violations could be towed was

         14  kept at the same level.

         15                 This has created a situation in that

         16  whereas before, people could accumulate up to five

         17  parking tickets before their cars were subject to

         18  two by the City, after the increase in their

         19  violation fines, cars were being towed after just

         20  two outstanding tickets, and the City Council

         21  believes that this is not a fair situation, so this

         22  bill would raise the threshold of outstanding fines

         23  from $230 to $350, primarily for the purposes of

         24  keeping in pace with the increase in parking fines.

         25                 This is the Committee's second

                                                            5

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  hearing on this bill. We had a first hearing on

          3  April 21st of this year, and I want to thank the

          4  Administration and Department of Finance for its

          5  work on this bill and their support.

          6                 This bill fixed an unfair situation,

          7  and we will vote on this and I would recommend that

          8  the Committee vote favorably on this.

          9                 The second item on our agenda is

         10  proposed Intro. No. 64-A. We'll hold a hearing on

         11  this bill which seeks to have the Taxi and Limousine

         12  Commission approve a hybrid electric vehicle for use

         13  as a New York City taxicab.

         14                 Although the City sold 27 medallions

         15  in the last medallion sale, that are designated for

         16  alternative fuel vehicle taxicabs, none of these

         17  alternative fuel taxicabs have been on the road,

         18  because the current hybrid electric vehicles do not

         19  meet the TLC's current specifications for taxicabs.

         20                 The TLC specs are important to ensure

         21  passenger comfort, but they have kept promising

         22  hybrid vehicles from being used as taxicabs.

         23                 The Transportation Committee has

         24  engaged in dialogue on several occasions with the

         25  Taxi and Limousine Commission to urge them to move
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          2  more quickly on approving a vehicle, a hybrid

          3  electric vehicle, for use as a New York City

          4  taxicab, and to this day we have not seen any

          5  motion. Therefore, we are going to push this bill

          6  forward, and this will ultimately help to further

          7  the City's policy of improving air quality and

          8  conserving fuel by putting these hybrid electric

          9  vehicles on the road as taxicabs.

         10                 We are also going to have a joint

         11  hearing with the Committee on Mental Health, Mental

         12  Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and Disability

         13  Services, and I'm honored to co-chair this portion

         14  of the hearing with my colleague, Margarita Lopez,

         15  the Chairperson of that Committee.

         16                 This joint Committee will hold a

         17  hearing on Intro. No. 398-A, that would ensure that

         18  ferries be accessible to all New Yorkers. There is

         19  currently a hole in the law. The law is guaranteeing

         20  equal access to people with disabilities do not

         21  cover ferries, do not currently cover ferries. This

         22  is the sixth hearing we are having on this and the

         23  predecessor bill, Intro. 261-A in the Council's last

         24  session.

         25                 New York is a unique City that relies
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          2  on our waterways as a major means of transportation.

          3  The ferries are the major mode of transportation for

          4  one of the City's five boroughs, Staten Island.

          5  Staten Islanders and many other New Yorkers rely on

          6  the ferries to commute to work appointments and for

          7  other every day activities.

          8                 In addition to the Staten Island

          9  Ferry, there are many other private ferry operators

         10  that help transport New Yorkers every day, via our

         11  waterways, but because there has been no law

         12  requiring these ferries to be accessible to people

         13  who use wheelchairs and scooters, people with

         14  disabilities are often not able to use this valuable

         15  and viable form of mass transportation.

         16                 This bill, Intro. 398-A, seeks to

         17  correct this oversight by setting standards that

         18  will make the ferries accessible to all New Yorkers.

         19                 Under the bill, ferry operators will

         20  now have standards that will make their boats

         21  accessible to people who use wheelchairs and

         22  scooters. And, again, we are seeking to correct a

         23  deficiency in the law, in the aims of making our

         24  ferries truly accessible to all New Yorkers. And we

         25  will also hold a vote on this bill. I will recommend
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          2  that my colleagues vote favorably on Intro. 398-A.

          3                 I'd like to turn the floor over to my

          4  co-chair for this morning's hearing, and I know that

          5  she will speak about the bill, as well as another

          6  topic that I just wanted to mention very briefly,

          7  and let Council Member Lopez speak about it at

          8  length, that is that yesterday we lost a very, very

          9  good friend. A friend who I consider a personal

         10  friend, and a person who has been a force in New

         11  York City in many ways. Frieda Zames was the

         12  activist of all activists on so many issues, and her

         13  passing is a tremendous loss for all of New York

         14  City.

         15                 At this point I would like to ask

         16  everybody to observe a moment of silence.

         17                 (Moment of Silence Observed.)

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         19                 Chairperson Margarita Lopez.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Good morning,

         21  citizens of New York City, and thank you for taking

         22  the time to attend today's hearing.

         23                 My name is Margarita Lopez, and I am

         24  the Chair of the Committee on Mental Health, Mental

         25  Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and Disability
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          2  Services.

          3                 I am pleased to join my colleague,

          4  Council Member John Liu, Chair of the Committee on

          5  Transportation today, as we consider finally

          6  proposed Intro. No. 398-A.

          7                 At this moment, I would like to

          8  introduce the members of the Disability Committee,

          9  if any of them are here.

         10                 No, none of them are here. As they

         11  come in, they will identify themselves.

         12                 Before we begin, I must address a

         13  very sad incident. Our beloved Frieda Zames has

         14  passed away yesterday in her sleep. Many of the

         15  victories in the Disability Civil Right Movement we

         16  all now enjoy can be directly attributed to Frieda,

         17  and we thank her today because she lived dedicated

         18  to the services and advocacy of the Disability Civil

         19  Right Movement, and we honor her today with our

         20  thoughts and our prayers.

         21                 But Frieda was not just a person who

         22  fought for disability services. Anyone who thinks

         23  that is very mistaken. Frieda was a radical

         24  feminist, Frieda fought for the rights of workers to

         25  unionize, Frieda fought for the immigrants of this
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          2  country, she fought for every right that we have

          3  under our constitution to be put forward for

          4  everyone. She even became a Lesbian in her own way,

          5  to fight for the rights the gay, lesbian,

          6  transgendered and bisexual community.

          7                 She was my friend. We met in 1979

          8  when we got arrested together for the first time.

          9  And we got arrested together for fighting for the

         10  bus transportation system of the MTA to be included,

         11  to allow people to ride the buses. We had to get

         12  arrested for that. What an insane society we live.

         13  That woman should have been President of United

         14  States of America, and we would have a better life

         15  because she also fought against the war in Vietnam,

         16  in Afghanistan, and anywhere that war had been

         17  declared.

         18                 Today I am glad that we're going to

         19  pass this piece of legislation. I am only saddened

         20  that Frieda is not going to fulfill the promise I

         21  made to her. I make a promise that we will pass this

         22  bill on the taxi for all people together and that

         23  she will be the witness and the first one to write

         24  and vote for this equipment that are provided for

         25  the people of the City of New York but have been

                                                            11

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  excluded and not allowed for people with

          3  disabilities to use.

          4                 I hope that, Frieda, you can forgive

          5  me, that we didn't do it on time. You cheated me.

          6  You left before you were supposed to. And I hope

          7  that any place you are you're listening to me right

          8  now, and you understand that I will fulfill my

          9  promise with you here in blood and flesh or in the

         10  spirit, one of the two ways it's going to be done.

         11                 God bless you, my sister, and I God

         12  bless your family and everything that you have done

         13  for humanity.

         14                 The issue that we're discussing today

         15  addressed by this proposed legislation that we are

         16  considering today are critical to disabled commuters

         17  who use the City Water Ferry System to commute. It

         18  is also critical to people who are not disabled.

         19  Sometimes we forget that a person who is disabled

         20  has a family, family members that would like to

         21  travel with them, would like to be with them, and if

         22  a person who use a wheelchair cannot take the

         23  transportation, the family member cannot take it

         24  either. Then this proposed legislation is for

         25  everybody, and it's to make a City inclusive, and to
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          2  make people be together and not separated because

          3  one person can have certain capacity and one person

          4  can have another capacity.

          5                 Ensuring the kind of access that this

          6  legislation propose,  will also make our ferry

          7  system more accessible. Not only to those who are

          8  physically disabled, but to the elderly, to the

          9  mothers who carry her children, and as we have heard

         10  from here in the private sector, greater

         11  accessibility also make it easier to move the

         12  passengers on and off of the ferries in a more

         13  effective way. So, it's beneficial for business too.

         14  This legislation has been in the works for a very

         15  long time, and its time has come.

         16                 We are passing legislation that set

         17  important and necessary standards. The federal

         18  government has not been able to act in making the

         19  ferry system of our nation wheelchair accessible, an

         20  accessibility for people with disabilities.

         21                 New York City today is setting the

         22  tone and sending the message to the rest of the

         23  nation, no longer in New York City we are going to

         24  tolerate or allow systems for transportation to

         25  develop that are not wheelchair accessible here.
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          2                 Today is a very, very good day in New

          3  York, and to Frieda, we are going to pass the first

          4  one promised, and the second one, I will say to you

          5  that it will be dedicated to you.

          6                 Thank you very much, and to the

          7  disabled community, I'm sorry for your loss. You are

          8  the one who are losing the biggest in this set of

          9  loss, and I thank you for always being there, and

         10  being a community of strength, who don't allow

         11  nobody to put you down. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         13                 We are expecting the Chairperson of

         14  the Taxi and Limousine Commission to arrive within a

         15  few minutes. There are a number of people who are

         16  signed up to testify on Intro. 642-A concerning

         17  hybrid electric taxicabs. We have one person who has

         18  signed up to testify on Intro. 398-A, which is the

         19  accessible ferries bill, and I will invite Michael

         20  Harris from the Disabled Riders Coalition to

         21  approach the witness table to testify.

         22                 We will have to wait for a quorum

         23  before we can vote on Intro. 398-A but I would ask

         24  you to come testify and then we are going to jump

         25  right into the hybrid electric taxicab legislation.
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          2                 Mr. Harris, please proceed.

          3                 MR. HARRIS: Thank you. Council Member

          4  Liu, Council Member Lopez, members of the Committee

          5  on Transportation and Committee on Mental Health and

          6  Disability, disabled riders in New York City face

          7  numerous transportation obstacles, be it the lack of

          8  accessible subway stations, or the lack of express

          9  buses, disabled riders have a very difficult time

         10  getting around this City.

         11                 The bill, Intro. 398-A, the

         12  Accessible Ferry Bill, is a major step in the right

         13  direction. And I look forward to it being passed by

         14  these two committees today, and going to a vote of

         15  the full Council.

         16                 This bill will help to increase full

         17  access and full equality in transportation for all

         18  people.

         19                 It is a drop in the bucket, but it's

         20  a major step. I do agree that we still need

         21  accessible taxis, and more accessible subway

         22  stations, and more accessible express buses, the

         23  accessible ferry bill will open new opportunities

         24  and new doors and allow riders with disabilities to

         25  better navigate our City in ways which are equal to
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          2  their non-disabled peers.

          3                 Such action is extremely important to

          4  society, both in principal, in spirit and in

          5  morality.

          6                 I want to thank these two committees

          7  for recommending these bills, for approving them and

          8  for referring them to the full Council for a vote.

          9  These bills save the taxpayers money, as it will

         10  reduce the use of Access-A-Ride, it will

         11  inconvenience disabled riders less, and it will

         12  benefit society as a whole.

         13                 People with disabilities and members

         14  of society, and a society which is more equal, which

         15  is more welcoming and which is more tourist

         16  friendly, is a vital thing to this City.

         17                 And, so, I want to thank this

         18  Committee for an affirmative vote, which I hope to

         19  have some time within the next hour or so, and I

         20  want to say that this bill should be passed in favor

         21  for people with disabilities, for society, for

         22  morals, and the City of New York can set an example

         23  for the nation and for the State and that other

         24  cities and states throughout the country can follow

         25  the City's lead in promoting greater accessible
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          2  public transportation, be it ferries, taxis, buses

          3  or subways.

          4                 Finally, I want to echo something

          5  stated by both Chairman Liu and Chairman Lopez.

          6                 Frieda Zames fought to this bill for

          7  the past 11 years, and it is truly sad that she is

          8  not with us this morning, to hear it passed out of

          9  the Committee, and that she won't be with us when

         10  it's passed by the full Council. And, so, I urge

         11  this Committee and thank this Committee for passing

         12  it.

         13                 Please pass this bill for the benefit

         14  of riders, for the benefit of the public, and in the

         15  memory of Frieda Zames.

         16                 I will also be submitting written

         17  testimony regarding the CNG hybrid taxi issue.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Harris, for your testimony this morning. And we

         20  certainly will accept your recommendation and carry

         21  through, once we reach quorum.

         22                 We have been joined by members of the

         23  Transportation Committee, Council Member Oliver

         24  Koppell from the Bronx, Council Member Helen Sears

         25  from Queens, Council Member Diana Reyna from
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          2  Brooklyn, and Council Member Sara Gonzalez from

          3  Brooklyn, and we've also been joined by Council

          4  Member David Yassky from Brooklyn, who is the prime

          5  sponsor of the hybrid electric taxi legislation.

          6                 At this point I'd like to turn over

          7  the floor to Council Member Yassky.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

          9  Chair Liu. And it's really been a privilege for me

         10  to be able to join with you in working over the past

         11  couple of years on promoting cleaner air from our

         12  taxicab fleet.

         13                 First let me just commend you on what

         14  you're doing today on accessibility in waterborne

         15  transit. I think you're taking a great and

         16  courageous and very, very important step forward,

         17  Chair Liu and Chair Lopez, and I commend you for

         18  that.

         19                 On Intro. 642, I very much hope that

         20  this Committee will consider this bill favorably. I

         21  know that today there is a hearing on it and we're

         22  going to hear testimony from both TLC and from a

         23  variety of environmental experts. The context for

         24  this to me is very simple. We live in a City with

         25  the highest asthma rate in the country, according to
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          2  our own Department of Health. Not, you know, kind

          3  of, not outside advocates that sometimes want to

          4  push the numbers, this is the Department of Health

          5  says one out of eight New Yorkers suffer from asthma

          6  or a similar respiratory illness. Now, with that the

          7  context, we have absolutely no excuse not to do

          8  everything we can at this level.

          9                 Now, obviously clean air is a

         10  national issue. We need a congress that's ready to

         11  live up to its responsibility, we need a president,

         12  who is not determined to gut every environmental

         13  regulation passed since the 1960s, but we here in

         14  the City can be doing a lot more, and we can start

         15  with the 13,000 taxicabs that are on the street 24

         16  hours a day. Those taxis contribute some 15,000 tons

         17  of carbon dioxide, several thousand tons of

         18  particulate matter, to our air every day. Now the

         19  taxis are a hugely important industry. Obviously

         20  they're what makes New York New York. I saw some

         21  statistic a couple of months ago about how the New

         22  York City taxi is one of the most recognizable kind

         23  of product brands, if you think of it as a product,

         24  in the world. But I think we can work with the

         25  industry to do more on this, and with, of course,
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          2  the Administration.

          3                 Simply shifting to hybrids would cut

          4  in half the emissions that the taxicab fleet

          5  produces. What this bill does of course, it doesn't

          6  require anybody to do anything, what it does is

          7  provide taxicab owners the option they choose to go

          8  alternative fuel and to use hybrids.

          9                 So, I very much hope that the

         10  Committee will look favorably on it. Chair Liu, I

         11  just want to thank you again for permitting me to

         12  join with you in pushing this issue over the past

         13  couple of years, and for your leadership in this

         14  hearing. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         16  Member Yassky. At this time we are joined by Matthew

         17  Daus, the Chairperson of the Taxi and Limousine

         18  Commission. I would like to welcome him to our

         19  witness table.

         20                 And as Chairman Daus is coming up, to

         21  underscore some of the points that Council Member

         22  Yassky has already made, this is a goal that we all

         23  share in cleaning the air in New York City, and it's

         24  a very simple issue that we're trying to address

         25  with Intro. 642-A, and that is that a couple of
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          2  years ago we already agreed, between the City

          3  Council and the Administration, that we would begin

          4  the process of cleaning up the vehicles and the

          5  emissions that the taxicab vehicles spew into our

          6  air in New York City.

          7                 And a couple of years ago we decided

          8  that a small number of the new medallions that would

          9  be auctioned off in the ensuing years would be

         10  required to be affixed to clean air vehicles, hybrid

         11  electric or CNG vehicles. Unfortunately, even after

         12  the small number of these enhanced value medallions

         13  were auctioned off, no vehicles are available today

         14  for these special medallions, and that's the limit

         15  of what we're trying to do with this legislation.

         16  We're trying to bring about the acceptance of these

         17  hybrid electric vehicles that are available on the

         18  market, and let them be used as New York City

         19  taxicabs.

         20                 This process needs to move more

         21  quickly. I know that the Taxi and Limousine

         22  Commission has known about this issue. We have

         23  engaged in dialogue on this issue in public hearings

         24  over this past year, and, so, we will once again

         25  engage in the dialogue, but we will push forward
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          2  this legislation.

          3                 At this time, we've also been joined

          4  by members of the Transportation Committee, Council

          5  Members Larry Seabrook from the Bronx, Council

          6  Member Miguel Martinez from Manhattan, and Council

          7  Member Andrew Lanza from Staten Island, and

          8  Commissioner, if you would just bear with us for a

          9  second?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Sure.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We are going to take

         12  a vote on Intro. 312-A. Once again, Committee

         13  members, Intro. 312-A addresses a problem that New

         14  York City residents have been facing these last

         15  couple of years.

         16                 A couple of years ago, parking fines

         17  in New York City were greatly increased, in many

         18  cases doubled, and while we certainly are not trying

         19  to encourage any more parking violators or parking

         20  scofflaws, it's a matter of fairness that we at

         21  least increase the dollar amount threshold over

         22  which the towing -- I mean, the parking violations

         23  fines accumulate before the City can go ahead and

         24  tow these cars.

         25                 The towing threshold has remained at
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          2  $230 for outstanding parking fines, and has not been

          3  changed even after the parking fines were greatly

          4  increased. So, whereas owners of cars were able to

          5  accumulate up to five unpaid parking tickets before,

          6  today with the increased parking violations fines,

          7  many of these car owners are subject to have their

          8  cars towed just after two parking tickets. And what

          9  we're doing today with this bill is raising the

         10  threshold from $230 to $350. This is a bill that's

         11  prime sponsored by Council Member Eric Dilan, and it

         12  enjoys the support of the Administration. I want to

         13  thank the Department of Finance for their work on

         14  this bill as well.

         15                 We're waiting for the clerk to get

         16  off the elevator.

         17                 Well, you know what? I'm just going

         18  to call the roll.

         19                 So, again, this is a vote on Intro.

         20  312-A that raises the outstanding parking fines

         21  threshold from $230 to $350. I recommend that

         22  Committee members vote yes on this bill.

         23                 Liu.

         24                 Yes.

         25                 Reyna.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Koppell.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Martinez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: May I be

          7  excused to explain my vote?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I want to

         10  commend Council Member Dilan for his leadership on

         11  this bill. This is important.

         12                 In many of our communities, we've

         13  seen an increase of Department of Transportation and

         14  the issuing of fines and I will say an invasion of

         15  the tow trucks throughout our communities and the

         16  fact that we did increase the fines and not increase

         17  the threshold by which they could be towed, I think

         18  this will bring some justice to our communities.

         19                 So, I want to commend him, and you,

         20  Mr. Chair, for bringing this out of Committee and to

         21  the full Council. So, I vote aye on all.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Seabrook.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes, Mr.

         24  Chairman. Just if I could have permission to explain

         25  my vote? There was some concern that had been

                                                            24

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  brought to my attention in reference to the fines. I

          3  spoke to the sponsor of the bill to talk about a lot

          4  of people who were employed by the marshals, et

          5  cetera, in terms of the jobs that could possibly be

          6  lost by this in terms of the revenue in which they

          7  have, so I have some concerns with that. However, I

          8  will vote for the bill, but I would hope that those

          9  concerns would be taken under consideration.

         10                 I vote aye.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sears.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Permission to

         13  explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do, Council

         15  Member Sears.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I recognize

         17  what 312-A is about, and respect for my colleagues,

         18  and certainly the chair; I vote no on this bill,

         19  because I believe it has become, the double-parking

         20  has become a safety issue. I have spoken with my

         21  community boards, I have spoken with my civic

         22  groups, I have spoken with community leaders, and I

         23  have reviewed the police reports as to the summonses

         24  for double-parking, and what I feel we're doing is

         25  to just have a lot of leniency with violations.
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          2                 People who double-park, the

          3  ambulances cannot get through, the fire trucks

          4  cannot get through, the buses cannot get through

          5  with people going to work, and the inconsideration

          6  of double parking deserves absolutely no leniency,

          7  and I vote no for this bill.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         10                 Gonzalez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Lanza.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Aye.

         14                 Mr. Chairman, will there be a vote on

         15  Intro. 398-A today?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, there will be

         17  as soon as we reach quorum on the Committee on

         18  Mental Health, Mental Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug

         19  Abuse and Disability Services.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Would it be

         21  permitted if I vote on that now? I have something

         22  else that will take me away from this hearing.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, I think we can

         24  open the roll on Intro. 398 as well. Why don't you

         25  let me do that and cast your vote on Intro. 312-A.
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          2                 We'll leave the roll open on Intro.

          3  312-A for any other members who will be arriving

          4  later.

          5                 One last comment about Intro. 312-A,

          6  and this is a bill that seeks to correct some of the

          7  seeming unjustice in that parking fines were greatly

          8  increased while the towing threshold was not.

          9                 Parking fines, people who violate

         10  parking laws and traffic laws will still be subject

         11  to parking fines, and what we're doing is, we're to

         12  some extent mitigating the effect of towing, which

         13  creates a tremendous financial burden and burden in

         14  other ways on the owners of these cars.

         15                 So, this bill, 312, Intro. 312-A has

         16  passed by a vote of so far seven in the affirmative,

         17  one in the negative, with the roll being left open

         18  for other Committee members who will join us later.

         19                 At this time I'll open the roll.

         20  We're voting on Intro. 398-A, which seeks to make

         21  our ferries in New York City more accessible,

         22  particularly to people with disabilities, people who

         23  use wheelchairs and scooters.

         24                 So, we'll call the roll first with

         25  Transportation Committee members, and once we reach
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          2  quorum with the other Committee, we will call the

          3  roll on that Committee as well.

          4                 This is a vote, Committee members, on

          5  Intro. 398-A, seeking to make ferries in New York

          6  City accessible to people who use wheelchairs and

          7  scooters. I recommend a yes vote on this bill, and

          8  I'll take the privilege of saying that we will vote

          9  on this bill in memory of our friend, leader and

         10  activist, Frieda Zames.

         11                 Once again I'll call the roll.

         12                 Liu.

         13                 Yes.

         14                 Reyna.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We've been joined by

         17  Council Member Joseph Addabbo from Queens.

         18                 Addabbo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Koppell.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Martinez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Seabrook.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sears.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Gonzalez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Lanza.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 Aye.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, all, for

         10  your votes, and now we will keep the role open on

         11  this vote on 398-A, and we await a vote by the

         12  Committee on Mental Health, Mental Retardation,

         13  Alcoholism, Drug Abuse, and Disability Services.

         14                 At this point we will go into

         15  testimony on Intro. 642-A, that seeks to make hybrid

         16  electric vehicles available for use by taxicabs in

         17  New York City, and we're honored to have the

         18  Chairperson of the Taxi and Limousine Commission,

         19  Matthew Daus, join us today. I thank you for your

         20  patience this morning.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No problem.

         22                 Good morning Chairman Liu, members of

         23  the Transportation Committee. My name is Matt Daus.

         24  I am the Commissioner and Chair of the New York City

         25  Taxi and Limousine Commission.
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          2                 Just to quickly introduce some people

          3  from my staff that are with us here today, to my

          4  right is my First Deputy Commissioner Andy Salkin.

          5  To his right is our new Assistant Commissioner for

          6  Safety and Emissions, and to my left is our new

          7  General Counsel, Chuck Frasier.

          8                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  appear here today to present testimony regarding

         10  Intro. 642-A. As you know, we only received a copy

         11  of the revised legislation yesterday afternoon, and

         12  my comments today are based on our preliminary

         13  review.

         14                 The Administration will carefully

         15  review this bill and keep the Council informed if we

         16  have any additional comments to share after this

         17  hearing.

         18                 The TLC is the City agency

         19  responsible for setting the standards for for-hire

         20  vehicles in New York City, including yellow

         21  medallion cabs.

         22                 For the agency staff and its Board of

         23  Commissioners, the primary goal is to ensure that

         24  the riding public has access to safe, reliable and

         25  comfortable service.
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          2                 To that end, our Board has adopted

          3  vehicle specifications for taxicabs, which focus on

          4  safety, functionality and comfort.

          5                 Some notable provisions of these

          6  specifications include rear passenger-controlled air

          7  conditioning, a protective partition, as well as

          8  enhanced leg room and head room requirements.

          9                 These specifications were enacted by

         10  the Commission pursuant to public rule-making

         11  procedures, in accordance with the City's

         12  Administrative Procedure Act, also known as CAPA,

         13  and involved input from the general public, as well

         14  as the taxicab industry.

         15                 The Commission may also authorize

         16  pilot programs to test new vehicles as taxicabs in

         17  limited numbers, and for limited periods of time.

         18                 The TLC is eager to explore the

         19  possibility of adding new alternative fuel vehicles,

         20  especially hybrids to our fleet of yellow cabs.

         21                 Our staff has been in touch with

         22  various automobile manufacturers, including General

         23  Motors and Toyota, which makes the hybrid Prius and

         24  Highlander vehicles.

         25                 We also have a long-standing working
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          2  relationship with Ford Motor Company, maker of both

          3  the Crown Victoria, as well as the hybrid Escape.

          4                 Based on a preliminary staff review

          5  of the available hybrid vehicles on the United

          6  States market as of today, there do not appear to be

          7  any that meet the current taxicab vehicle

          8  specifications that were enacted by our Board of

          9  Commissioners.

         10                 In order to address the clear public

         11  interest in using hybrid vehicles as yellow cabs,

         12  the agency feels that it would be appropriate to

         13  test them on a limited basis. This would provide the

         14  riding public, the taxicab industry and the Board of

         15  Commissioners, with an opportunity to evaluate such

         16  vehicles as taxicabs which are operated 24 hours a

         17  day, seven days a week on the streets of New York

         18  City.

         19                 While hybrid technology has become

         20  very popular in the consumer market, it is still

         21  relatively new, and vehicles remain in the

         22  development stage with manufacturers, such that

         23  modifications are expected to be made in the coming

         24  years.

         25                 We remain committed to the Council's
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          2  mandate for the City to offer for sale 81

          3  medallions, dedicated for use with alternative fuel

          4  vehicles before the end of this next fiscal year,

          5  and we expect that a test of hybrid vehicles will

          6  lead to the approval by our Board of Commissioners

          7  of alternative fuel vehicles to enable the next

          8  medallion sale to be successful.

          9                 In order to move towards testing such

         10  vehicles, the Board of Commissioners plans to

         11  discuss this issue at the next public commission

         12  meeting scheduled for this coming Monday, June 20th.

         13                 Council Member Yassky has already

         14  graciously agreed to attend on behalf of the Council

         15  to discuss this issue with her board, and anyone

         16  else who would like to come as welcome.

         17                 I look forward to working both with

         18  him, Chairman Liu, and the members of the

         19  Transportation Committee.

         20                 I anticipate discussion with the

         21  commissioners about the value of allowing new hybrid

         22  vehicles to be tested versus any possible costs, in

         23  terms of passenger comfort.

         24                 I will then seek commission approval

         25  for a pilot program to test a limited number of
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          2  appropriate hybrid vehicles as taxicabs.

          3                 With regard to Intro. No. 642-A, I

          4  would like to first note that while we agree with

          5  the goals and intentions of the Council in proposing

          6  this law, we also respectfully disagree on exactly

          7  how to best accomplish those goals.

          8                 The public policy challenge here is

          9  to find the appropriate balance between, on the one

         10  hand, providing for cleaner air and more

         11  fuel-efficient vehicles, but on the other hand,

         12  while also preserving the advances that are made in

         13  the area of passenger comfort and convenience,

         14  namely more room for passengers.

         15                 We are concerned that the proposed

         16  legislation to put the TLC in the position of

         17  authorizing vehicles for use as taxis that have not

         18  been properly tested.

         19                 Intro. 642-A would require the

         20  automatic approval of vehicles without the benefit

         21  of the TLC's experimental vehicle review and testing

         22  process. I would recommend that the Commission

         23  approve a pilot program process for testing these

         24  taxicabs to ensure safety, road worthiness and also

         25  to receive feedback from the riding public on these
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          2  new vehicles.

          3                 This process would involve the

          4  collection and analysis of inspection data,

          5  passenger feedback, and maintenance records.

          6                 The successful pilot program is the

          7  first step in attaining approval for new vehicles

          8  and taxicabs, and could lead to modifications by

          9  manufacturers where issues surface during the

         10  testing phase.

         11                 The pilot program protocol builds

         12  confidence with the industry. Manufacturers, the

         13  riding public and ultimately the commission before

         14  committing to substantial investments in new

         15  vehicles.

         16                 The proposed legislation mandates

         17  that the TLC take action to approve a vehicle within

         18  30 days.

         19                 While I believe we can agree that it

         20  is our mutual desire to accomplish our goals as soon

         21  as possible, and we will, the 30-day time frame is

         22  neither practical, nor legal in our view.

         23                 The rule-making process set forth in

         24  the New York City Charter requires the Commission to

         25  publish proposed rules a minimum of 30 days prior to
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          2  a public hearing, where the public has the right to

          3  give input on them, and also restrict legal

          4  effectiveness and implementation until an additional

          5  30 days after the final publication of the rules

          6  after they are approved by the Commission.

          7                 Furthermore, it is our considered

          8  viewpoint that a pilot program should precede any

          9  final approval of vehicles, which could not possibly

         10  be concluded within 30 days.

         11                 Despite our mutual intention to move

         12  forward as expeditiously as possible, placing

         13  unrealistic time restrictions and local law upon a

         14  matter which is not entirely within the control or

         15  jurisdiction of City government is problematic and

         16  inconsistent with longstanding TLC regulations and

         17  procedures.

         18                 The TLC's taxicab specifications

         19  require a process for vehicle approval involving a

         20  sponsor, such as a vehicle manufacturer to meet

         21  certain requirements.

         22                 The TLC does not possess the legal

         23  authority under the City Charter to compel

         24  manufacturers, even if we passed rules and the

         25  Council passed its law, to submit vehicles for
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          2  approval or to otherwise manufacture them according

          3  to our requests. However, we are optimistic. We

          4  should continue to partner with manufacturers and

          5  the industry as we have successfully done in the

          6  past with Ford and the production of the stretch

          7  Crown Victoria to respond to passengers' request for

          8  bigger vehicles, rather than impose a mandate which

          9  may not have a positive affect.

         10                 In sum, the TLC opposes the passage

         11  on Intro. 642-A in its current form for the

         12  foregoing reasons, and recommends that the Council

         13  work closely with the TLC's Board of Commissioners,

         14  and myself, as we have in the past, to authorize a

         15  pilot program to test appropriate alternative fuel

         16  vehicles prior to the next medallion sale.

         17                 Thank you for your time, Mr.

         18  Chairman. And I would now be happy to answer any

         19  questions you or your members may have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         21  for your testimony, Commissioner Daus. At this point

         22  we are, we have reached quorum on the Committee on

         23  Mental Health, Mental Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug

         24  Abuse and Disability Services.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And the
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          2  clerk is here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And the clerk is

          4  here.

          5                 So, let me turn it over to the

          6  Co-Chair, Council Member Margarita Lopez.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: At this moment I

          8  would like to ask each and every one of the members

          9  of the Committee who arrived to introduce themselves

         10  and be aware that we're voting on Intro. 398-A. It's

         11  an Intro that is going to make finally accessible

         12  waterborne vehicles, and allow all of the disabled

         13  community to join into the bonanza of a new

         14  transportation system that is being developed in New

         15  York City, for the benefit of every New Yorker, and

         16  not just for the benefit of some New Yorkers. And we

         17  are going to begin seeing finally the inclusion of

         18  the disabled community into the mass transportation

         19  system that the City is producing and preparing for

         20  the next century.

         21                 From my right hand, I would like to

         22  ask Council Member Gentile to introduce himself.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         24  Madam Chair.

         25                 Councilman Vincent Gentile, 43rd
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          2  District, in the beautiful Borough of Brooklyn.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Council Member

          4  Brewer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Gale Brewer,

          6  representing the West Side of Manhattan.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I'm Council

          8  Member Stewart, representing Central Brooklyn, and

          9  I'm sorry to hold up the vote on 398-A. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And at this

         11  moment, Chairman Liu, you can proceed with the vote.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Will the clerk

         13  please call the roll on intro -- well, continue the

         14  roll on Intro. 398-A.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Lopez.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Pass at this

         17  moment.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I vote yes,

         20  particularly in memory of Frieda Zames.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Stewart.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Stewart votes

         23  yes because it's about time we do a little more for

         24  the disabled. Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gentile.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Lopez.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: At this moment, I

          5  would like to express my gratitude to the entire

          6  Committee on disability. You have been a champion in

          7  working with me on this issue, and I want to thank

          8  you for being always there to push forward more and

          9  more for the benefit and the rights of disabled

         10  people.

         11                 I also want to thank the Speaker for

         12  putting this bill forward and being willing to bring

         13  really true equality for people with disabilities,

         14  putting this bill forward is part of what we are

         15  about in this Council, the understanding that we

         16  need to be inclusive, and that we need to push that

         17  issue forward.

         18                 Without no more, I want to vote aye,

         19  and this is for all of you and for Frieda Zames.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And we

         22  will keep the roll open for other members who will

         23  join us shortly.

         24                 At this point, except for the open

         25  rolls, we have concluded business on Intro. 398-A,
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          2  accessible ferries, and Intro. 312-A, on raising the

          3  threshold before which cars can be towed for parking

          4  violations.

          5                 We will now dedicate our attention to

          6  Intro. 642-A, which we have the Commissioner of the

          7  Taxi and Limousine Commission with us here today.

          8                 Commissioner, thank you very much for

          9  your testimony. I have a few questions, and then

         10  some of my colleagues have questions, as well.

         11                 It's been two years since we, through

         12  the budget process, and through local law in 2003,

         13  authorized the sale of these medallions, a small

         14  number of medallions, nine percent of all the

         15  medallions that were planned to be issued over the

         16  next three years, at that point in 2003, and we knew

         17  that these 81 medallions, special medallions, would

         18  have to be affixed to vehicles which meet the

         19  specifications of clean air, clean field burning,

         20  and that included hybrid vehicles, hybrid electric

         21  vehicles, as well as CNG burning vehicles.

         22                 And unfortunately, in the first year

         23  none of the medallions were sold, but in the second

         24  auction, all 27 in that year were sold. Our

         25  understanding is that at this point they're not
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          2  usable just because there is still no vehicle

          3  available. So, what's happening in two years since

          4  we agreed to having these special medallions affixed

          5  to taxicabs that would help clean our air in New

          6  York City? What's happened, and why haven't we done

          7  a pilot program in these past two years?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, first, Mr.

          9  Chairman, if I could, I would like to also express

         10  my condolences to the disability community. I am

         11  equally saddened, as you all are, to have lost

         12  Frieda Zames and a little shocked to hear about it

         13  when I walked in here. She has been a true advocate

         14  for the disability community. We may have disagreed

         15  on some topics, but I think overall our goals were

         16  the same, and we worked very well with her, and I

         17  just want to express, not only my condolences, but

         18  condolences from the entire TLC, because the staff

         19  would work and talk to her all the time, and I'm

         20  very, very saddened to hear that news.

         21                 To address your specific question,

         22  Mr. Chairman, well, first of all, the last sale that

         23  was held, there was one approved vehicle, and that

         24  was the Crown Victoria compressed natural gas

         25  vehicle that was on the road. The problem that we
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          2  have is that there is no approved hybrid electric

          3  vehicle. We're making steps to pilot those vehicles,

          4  ultimately we need to accomplish the shared goals of

          5  having one that works well on the streets of the

          6  City of New York, but also provides comfort and

          7  convenience for the passengers.

          8                 Right now some of these vehicles

          9  would take us back many steps to vehicles that may

         10  be even smaller than the Crown Victorias that were

         11  on the road that people complained about. So, you

         12  know, we have these two interests that we're trying

         13  to balance. Certainly clean air is a top priority

         14  for the Commission, but with all due respect, I

         15  cannot comment too much on the sale because we are

         16  in litigation, and I've been advised by counsel not

         17  to talk about the circumstances involving that sale.

         18                 But what I will say is that the sale

         19  was conducted with the intention of continuing to

         20  explore hybrid electrics for the next sale, but to

         21  allow people who already had vehicles on the road

         22  that are compressed natural gas fueled, that aren't

         23  owned by them, that the medallions aren't owned, but

         24  to give them the opportunity to attain ownership.

         25  Because after all, years ago when we started this
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          2  program, these were the people that were on the

          3  forefront that made the investment in the program

          4  that failed, and we felt that those people who had

          5  the best interest of the City at heart, should have

          6  had the opportunity to take advantage of the sale.

          7                 So, we were pleased to see that there

          8  was interest, and we're gratified at that, and we're

          9  going to make sure with your help that the next sale

         10  is a success.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Has the TLC taken

         12  any steps towards testing any of the hybrid electric

         13  vehicles that are available on the market today --

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: -- For use as

         16  taxicabs?

         17                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes, we have.

         18  We've been doing a tremendous amount of research.

         19  We've been in touch with vehicle manufacturers and I

         20  am actually, the timing of this bill is good, to the

         21  extent that the topic and debate is being brought up

         22  after many months of planning to bring this before a

         23  Board of Commissioners next Monday.

         24                 So, it's my hope that by next Monday

         25  we'll have a clear read from a Board, and be able to
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          2  start testing some of these vehicles in limited

          3  numbers and for a limited period of time. With the

          4  hope that if some of these vehicles, even though

          5  they're a little too small, hold up very well, we

          6  can convince the manufacturers next year to put out

          7  a vehicle that is not only hybrid electric and fuel

          8  efficient, but also be big enough.

          9                 It's part of a confidence building

         10  process, and that's what the process is all about.

         11  That's why I'm recommending that we don't go

         12  directly, you know, past go, and you know, approve

         13  something, that we go through the process we usually

         14  go through, which is to pilot the vehicles. It

         15  doesn't have to be an extensive pilot, it doesn't

         16  have to be a year, it should be for a limited period

         17  of time and the basic necessity to get it done so

         18  that we can move forward with the sale.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Hasn't the TLC

         20  conducted pilot testing programs before? It doesn't

         21  require any legislation, does it?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, you mentioned

         24  that the TLC has already undertaken action towards

         25  approving a hybrid electric vehicle by contracting
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          2  manufacturers? Has anything else been done apart

          3  from contacting manufacturers for information?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, we've been

          5  speaking to members of the industry to see if they

          6  will sponsor a vehicle.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, 27 medallions

          8  were sold, presumably the people who bought those

          9  medallions a year ago understood what they were

         10  supposed to do with those medallions.

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, the

         12  medallions were sold prior to consideration of a

         13  pilot program. We were just not there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, the goal is

         15  not the pilot program. The goal is getting the

         16  medallions on the road. The medallions are affixed

         17  to clean air vehicles, and, so, it sounds to us that

         18  as the extent of the TLC's actions in finding a

         19  vehicle that's appropriate for use as taxicabs, that

         20  are considered clean air vehicles, is simply

         21  contacting manufacturers and talking to some

         22  industry groups. Although, we would think that it

         23  wasn't actually necessary to talk to the industry

         24  because 27 of these medallions were already bought

         25  and sold.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, actually I

          3  would have to disagree with you on that. They were

          4  not sold, they were bid, and the bids were

          5  tremendous. We had more than we expected. But there

          6  was no vehicle that was approved at the time.

          7                 I mean, we could have scrapped the

          8  sale and not did it at all, but what we decided to

          9  do was to give people the opportunity, who had CNG

         10  vehicles on the road already, the ability to buy a

         11  medallion, rather than not go forward with it at

         12  all.

         13                 I would have to disagree. I think

         14  that we've done a lot in terms of trying to convince

         15  the manufacturers and the industry to buy into this.

         16  The problem is we don't have control over who is

         17  going to -- how people are going to manufacture the

         18  vehicles, and we don't necessarily have control over

         19  whether the industry is going to buy them unless we

         20  mandate them. And I think putting a mandate out

         21  there is putting the cart before the horse.

         22                 We have to make sure that our goal is

         23  not necessarily in and of itself to just sell the

         24  medallions. The goal in and of itself is to find a

         25  workable vehicle that is safe, reliable, won't break
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          2  down, won't be an investment that is made that, like

          3  we had with the CNG program years ago that was a

          4  failure, where people bought CNG vehicles and the

          5  Commission mandated it, and we went down that road

          6  and what ultimately happened is there weren't enough

          7  fueling stations and the whole program was scrapped.

          8  And medallion owners lost a lot of money, and it's

          9  just something that was a bad experience, and I'd

         10  rather not repeat the mistakes of the past. We're

         11  not talking about waiting a tremendous period of

         12  time. I think the approach should be prudent and

         13  cautious, but at the same time move forward as fast

         14  as we can.

         15                 I think I discussed with Council

         16  Member Yassky, even though I don't feel the Ford

         17  Escape, for example, is something that passengers

         18  are going to like in terms of being able to fit in

         19  the back of the vehicle. Passengers demand big

         20  vehicles.

         21                 Why can't we test it, make sure it's

         22  road worthy, and then come back next year with the

         23  manufacturer, knowing we went through the process.

         24  If we go through the process like we always do, Mr.

         25  Chairman, the medallion owners feel that they're not
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          2  throwing their money away if they invested it. The

          3  manufacturers see that there's interest so that

          4  they're not investing in remaking the vehicle and

          5  wasting their time and money, and then we'll be able

          6  to, like we did with the stretch Crown Victoria,

          7  offer it for sale, approve it as a vehicle, and then

          8  get it on the road.

          9                 I think I disagree with you that the

         10  sale of the medallion is an end unto itself. You

         11  have to look at the big picture. The bit picture is

         12  do we want to see people making an investment in a

         13  vehicle which is too small, which is going to remain

         14  on the road for three, or possibly up to five more

         15  years, so it has to be limited in my view, and I

         16  think there should be a pilot. It's not going to

         17  take forever. We're in the stages of bringing it to

         18  the Commission as of this Monday, so I think we have

         19  made progress.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The issue is, I

         21  agree with you, the issue is not about just getting

         22  those medallions on the road, actually what we're

         23  doing and what we agreed to two years ago is a tiny

         24  step. A tiny step in terms of cleaning up New York

         25  City's air and a tiny step in terms of requiring our
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          2  taxicabs in New York City to burn cleaner fuel and

          3  be more friendly to the environment.

          4                 It's a very, very small step, and it

          5  has taken forever to get a vehicle approved. Two

          6  years is a long time.  Twenty-seven medallions.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Mr. Chairman, I

          8  think you and I could both agree, I would hope, that

          9  neither you nor I have the authority to force a

         10  manufacturer to produce one of these vehicles,

         11  correct?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It has been a long

         13  time that these hybrid electric vehicles have been

         14  available on the market, and as you testified

         15  yourself, they are gaining a great deal of consumer

         16  demand as well.

         17                 So, they're available on the market.

         18  Our problem is that, and we talked about this

         19  specifically this past March also in the Preliminary

         20  Budget hearings when we asked what was going on,

         21  there does not seem to be any motion forward.

         22                 Now, again, this is -- you talk about

         23  having the vehicles available on the market and

         24  having industry, the industry, the owners being

         25  willing to purchase these vehicles. We're not saying
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          2  that the other 13,000 taxicabs must be clean-fuel

          3  burning or hybrid electric. We're simply saying that

          4  people have agreed to this in principal already by

          5  making bids, very favorable bids, on just 27

          6  medallions, and yet those sales can't be closed, I

          7  guess that's the right terminology, all sales can't

          8  be closed because there is no vehicle available. And

          9  the movement towards making those vehicles available

         10  is insufficient in our minds.

         11                 And, so, while the TLC maybe having

         12  meetings this coming Monday, we're happy to hear

         13  that those meetings are going to take place, and

         14  perhaps next month as well, we still are going to

         15  make sure that because our experience over the last

         16  several months has been that the TLC has not been

         17  making the movement forward quick enough, we're

         18  going to do this through legislation.

         19                 Now, if you're saying that 30 days is

         20  unreasonable, what is a reasonable time frame?

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I can give you an

         22  answer after I meet with my Board on Monday.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, if your board

         24  --

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Certainly nothing
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          2  less than 90 days, Mr. Liu, because with the

          3  rule-making process, the drafting, the Law

          4  Department approvals, the required publication,

          5  because the public has the right to weigh in on

          6  this, we may get people who testify that we don't

          7  want smaller vehicles. We have to listen and

          8  consider under the law their viewpoint.

          9                 So, we have at least 90 days, and

         10  while I think we're probably not going to agree on

         11  the point of the time frame, my last comment on it,

         12  if I may, is that I believe it really depends on how

         13  you define motion, number one.

         14                 You may define motion as getting on

         15  the road. I think there's a lot of steps that lead

         16  up to that.

         17                 Number two, with all due respect, I

         18  think it's unfair to characterize the TLC has not

         19  been doing anything.

         20                 My staff has been working very hard

         21  on this, and you know what? The vehicles have not

         22  been available in the way that they are until the

         23  last year? There has been a lot of testing, but I

         24  don't think anyone in this room can tell me that the

         25  vehicles that are being offered now were on the
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          2  market and so popular as they were three, four, five

          3  years ago, or even at the time that we started

          4  talking about this. So, I think it's very unfair to

          5  characterize it that way. I think that we all

          6  committed, whether legislation passed or not, to

          7  getting this done as soon as possible. But certainly

          8  I think we disagree on how to do that, and I think

          9  we certainly disagree on the definition of what's

         10  been in motion, so-to-speak.

         11                 But I don't think we're going to

         12  agree on that. So, whatever you decide to do, we'll

         13  try to adhere to it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         15  I will note that this will not be the first time

         16  that the Council has felt that the testing has not

         17  moved forward quickly enough at TLC with regard to

         18  this issue, or other vehicle specifications that

         19  people in the public have been looking for tests to

         20  be done on.

         21                 We're not asking the TLC in any way

         22  to make shortcuts, to take shortcuts that would in

         23  any way compromise passenger safety. And we are not

         24  about to do that with this legislation.

         25                 Nonetheless, it is our opinion that
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          2  the TLC has not moved quickly enough, given that

          3  this principle was agreed upon two years ago, and

          4  that the -- I guess it hasn't been quite a year yet

          5  but it's been quite a bit of time since last October

          6  when the 27 medallions were sold.

          7                 So, while 30 days may be too short,

          8  and that remains to be seen, we certainly are going

          9  to make the time frame as lean and streamlined as

         10  possible, and we do want to work with you on this

         11  issue.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you. I

         13  appreciate that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'll turn the floor

         15  over to Council Member David Yassky.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         17  Chair Liu. You really covered a lot. I just want to

         18  reiterate a lot of what the Chair said.

         19                 You know, there's no point, maybe

         20  kind of going back over history, but it really has

         21  been two years. I really want to reiterate to the

         22  Committee members, I think this bill is absolutely

         23  worth passing, if not 30 days, then whatever the

         24  appropriate time frame, to make sure that it does

         25  happen. And if it's something you intend to do,
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          2  quite honestly, you should not oppose that.

          3                 I actually honestly, Mr. Chair, think

          4  that this is a bill that you ought to be supporting,

          5  because if it's something that you want to do, let's

          6  just make sure and put it in writing, and the truth

          7  is over the last two years, you know, when the first

          8  time you put the bids out, and I asked the

          9  manufacturers, I asked people in the taxi industry,

         10  how come nobody bid for these? They said, well,

         11  there's no car approved. So, that really has been, I

         12  think, the barrier. And, no, were the same cars

         13  available five years ago? No. But the Escape hybrid

         14  has been out there. And beyond that, I think that

         15  the TLC should be, and I know that you would like to

         16  be, I think that you would like to be really taking

         17  the initiative here and not just waiting for the

         18  industry. I think when manufacturers know that there

         19  is a 13,000 car market out there, that they will

         20  respond. I mean, this hearing is on this bill, I

         21  personally think that we all -- and Chair Liu and I

         22  have introduced a bill that I'm going to continue to

         23  advocate for that will push the entire fleet in this

         24  direction, and I do think manufacturers will respond

         25  to that. I mean, frankly, there is very little doubt
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          2  that they'll respond to that.

          3                 Let me just ask you this, about the

          4  pilot program that you are proposing, can you give

          5  me some details on this? I mean, how many cars are

          6  you talking about? Are we talking about five cars or

          7  25 or 105?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I would think a

          9  little more than five, I would think. But it's

         10  really not up to me entire. What I want to do is to

         11  propose on Monday to the Commissioners that we look

         12  into and discuss what the appropriate numbers should

         13  be and how long the pilot period. Because under the

         14  Charter there has to be a beginning and end to the

         15  pilot, and I think we all want it to be as quickly

         16  as possible. But also as the Chairman said to not

         17  sacrifice any concerns about safety, road

         18  worthiness, as I'm sure you agree.

         19                 So, we'll decide that on Monday, and

         20  we welcome you as being part of that discussion and

         21  starting it off and I thank you for agreeing to come

         22  down.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, no, I

         24  appreciate your invitation. I absolutely will do it.

         25  I'm not trying to pin you down, but can you give me
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          2  an order of magnitude? Is the pilot program 20 cars,

          3  100? Just an order of magnitude for what's a pilot

          4  program.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, in the past,

          6  you know, we've done pilot programs that are

          7  anywhere from one to two or five vehicles up to 100,

          8  200 vehicles. You know, under the prior draft of

          9  this legislation, 642, that could have conceivably

         10  allowed people to put over 1,000 on the road.  I

         11  think you're talking about thousands of vehicles

         12  when next year we may convince the manufacturers to

         13  make them bigger and make some changes to them, I

         14  think is imprudent, and I think is a bad investment.

         15                 I think the number needs to be

         16  limited. I don't want to commit to a number because

         17  it's really not fair to my Board members who have a

         18  say in this as well.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I don't want

         20  to take the Committee's time. I just want to push on

         21  this point because I think it's important, as, you

         22  know, whether it's a bad investment.

         23                 Whatever cars people purchase this

         24  coming year because they need to replace their cars

         25  or their medallion, those cars are going to be on
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          2  the road for the three-, four-year period no matter

          3  what. So, if they're Crown Victorias, as they almost

          4  certainly will be, if we do nothing, then those cars

          5  are going to be on the road for three years.

          6                 I'd rather have an early versions

          7  hybrid that, yes, a better model is there next year,

          8  but I'd rather have that early version hybrid be on

          9  the road for the next three years, while better

         10  hybrids are coming along next year, than have the

         11  Crown Victoria on the road for three years.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's where I

         13  think we disagree because, you know, it has a limit.

         14                 If you put thousands of vehicles out

         15  there and they do have I believe a right and an

         16  expectation to keep it on the road for five years,

         17  then the better vehicle comes out, then we're really

         18  just shortchanging customers and passengers in

         19  giving them lots of small vehicles.

         20                 And I really, I wish you could have

         21  been there when we had our public hearing back in

         22  2001, and the months and years leading up to that,

         23  the biggest and only complaint I got when I was

         24  first appointed Chair was the vehicles are too

         25  small. And you know what? The environment is a lot
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          2  more important in my view, but we have an obligation

          3  to look at both issues. And you know, that's my only

          4  point. It's a question of degree, how we do it. We

          5  all agree, Council member, on what we're trying to

          6  do. It's just how you do it, how many vehicles, how

          7  much time? Do you approve something and short

          8  circuit the process, as the legislation seems to be

          9  suggesting? Or do you go through the normal process

         10  that we do, which is a pilot program. The pilot

         11  doesn't have to go on forever. Pilot program is

         12  limited.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Absolutely.

         14                 No, believe me, I agree with that. I

         15  want to tall you, I take very seriously your comfort

         16  point. I mean I think, you know, you could kind of

         17  demagog and say, well, what's comfortable when

         18  you're talking about people's lives and their

         19  respiratory health, but I'm not doing that. I take

         20  seriously the point about comfort, that's part of

         21  what the fleet should offer, but I very strongly

         22  believe, you know, I only represent 151st of the

         23  City, you work for the entire City, but I know that

         24  my constituents, very, very many of them, would be

         25  delighted to walk into a cab and see that it's a
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          2  clean-burning fuel vehicle. They would feel very

          3  good about that.

          4                 I'm just saying, don't assume that

          5  people won't trade off a couple of inches of leg

          6  room --

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: They might. But I

          8  think you would agree if we could accomplish both,

          9  Council Member, that's even better.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Of course

         11  that's the best.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You know, and this

         13  would, there is no question this would make a

         14  fundamental difference in emissions. But I have to

         15  point out for the record for people who aren't as in

         16  tune to the issues as you and I are, is that New

         17  York City taxicabs are, without question, the

         18  cleanest vehicle on the road. In the City of New

         19  York, I would venture to say that in terms of a

         20  gas-fuel vehicle, it is the cleanest. It is

         21  inspected three times per year, more than any other

         22  vehicle. We have state-of-the-art on-board

         23  diagnostics to testing equipment, which is done

         24  first at the TLC. In fact, we not only meet, but in

         25  some instances exceed Tier II requirements under
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          2  both federal and California EPA guidelines, which

          3  California has a gold standard and some of the

          4  highest emissions restrictions, as you know, and we

          5  meet and exceed those.

          6                 So, I just want to make sure the

          7  general public understands that the cabs that are

          8  out there, even though they're gas-fueled and we can

          9  get better fuel efficiency and a cleaner

         10  environment, they are the cleanest cabs and the

         11  cleanest vehicles anywhere that I know.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. All

         13  right, thank you.

         14                 My last question is, I just want to

         15  be clear on the legality, because your statement

         16  seems to suggest that, something about 642 would be

         17  contrary to charter or illegal. Is it your position

         18  that you could not implement 642 legally?

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, I'm not

         20  putting the legal hat with a definitive answer on

         21  right now.

         22                 Counsel has advised us that there are

         23  separate provisions of the City Charter that require

         24  a rule-making process which has the 30-day --

         25  actually, it's a 60-day minimum requirement that I
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          2  discussed, minimum requirement that I discussed.

          3                 Those provisions of the charter would

          4  contradict the 30-day period. I'm not saying that a

          5  period of time would be legally problematic, but our

          6  attorneys feel that the 30-day window is just too

          7  short and it would conflict with the process under

          8  the Charter.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. Then let

         10  me just, because I do think this is important --

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's the only

         12  way I meant that it was illegal.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I don't want to

         15  imply anything else.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, a 90-day

         17  period, is there any argument that you could not

         18  legally implement that then?

         19                 MR. FRASIER: Well, a straight-forward

         20  rule-making can legally be done within 90 days, yes.

         21  The question is whether it can be prudently and

         22  practically done within 90 days.

         23                 You must allow a 30-day comment

         24  period after you proposed your rule, and you must

         25  allow a 30-day implementation period after you've
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          2  adopted your rule.

          3                 The problem is the period before you

          4  proposed the rule. This is not a rule we can sit

          5  down and write this afternoon. That's what I mean --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So, basically,

          7  though, if it's something that gave you 30 days or

          8  45 days to propose the rule, and then there was

          9  another 30 days of comment, that's 75 days, I think

         10  the effective date being then 30 days past that

         11  frankly isn't covered by this, because this just

         12  speaks to your making of the rule. So, something

         13  that gave, you know, as I say, 30 to 45 days to

         14  propose it, plus then the 30-day comment period

         15  would be legal. Would be no legal bar to

         16  implementation.

         17                 And then --

         18                 MR. FRASIER: There would be no legal

         19  bar but our dispute --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: A dispute

         21  whether 30 or 45 days was enough for you to do it

         22  prudently.

         23                 MR. FRASIER: Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Also the issue,

          3  you know, I just want to separate from the legality

          4  whether it's advisable. I just want you to

          5  understand that while I appreciate your intentions

          6  to move it along, and I think we're all on the same

          7  page, my official viewpoint, for whatever it's

          8  worth, is, even though you want to make a statement,

          9  that's clear, I don't believe it's legally

         10  necessary, and I believe that we have worked

         11  together and the Commission has been delegated the

         12  authority by you to do this, I would just appreciate

         13  that whatever laws come out that they speak in

         14  general terms and they don't go into some of the

         15  specifics. Because I know the first draft of the

         16  bill had actual specifications. It's our viewpoint,

         17  with all due respect to the Council's right to do

         18  these things, that when changes are made, especially

         19  in this area, two years from now it could be

         20  substantial changes to vehicles, that I just think

         21  it's bad government practice to keep coming back to

         22  pass a local law when the Commission meets every

         23  month, and the intention of an expert administrative

         24  agency like the TLC is to get into the details where

         25  the Council deals with the Board of Policy issues.
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          2                 So, just as a point of viewpoint from

          3  me to you, not to, you know, take into consideration

          4  the fact that you have the right to do it, the

          5  question of whether I think it's advisable and

          6  recommended to you is where I'm coming from.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, I just

          8  would want you to know and, frankly, the public to

          9  know, that Chair Liu, the original bill was much

         10  more specific, and I think Chair Liu has made the

         11  point that for good government sake, kind of details

         12  like number of inches ought best be left to the

         13  agency to fill in and that the Council's role as the

         14  policy point, I think he's really struck the right

         15  balance here.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you. I

         17  appreciate that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         19  Member Yassky.

         20                 I'd like to ask Council Member

         21  Sanders to cast his vote on Intro. 312-A, and 398-A.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sanders.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Yes, to both.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         25                 Clerk, please make note of that vote.
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          2                 We have questions from Council

          3  Members Sears and Lopez, and after that we will hear

          4  from a panel consisting of Mel Miller and Vincent

          5  Sapone. After that we'll hear from Wendy Neu and

          6  Todd Sigaty. And then the final panel today, the

          7  distinguished panel of Bob Muldoon from the Sierra

          8  Club, Katherine Stahnke from the League of

          9  Conservation Voters, and Mark Izeman from Natural

         10  Resources Defense Council.

         11                 Just a couple of follow-ups to what

         12  you had just commented before in response to Council

         13  Member Yassky's questions, Commissioner.

         14                 Again, I want to emphasize that, you

         15  keep referring to passengers wanting a comfortable

         16  vehicle, and we want a comfortable vehicle as well,

         17  but, again, we're talking about 27, perhaps 54 next

         18  year, and 81 all together. Eighty-one medallions

         19  that would be affixed to these clean air vehicles,

         20  that would have to be affixed to these clean air

         21  vehicles.

         22                 So, it's not like enacting

         23  legislation, imposing requirements on all 13,000

         24  vehicles. At some point in the near future, we may

         25  embark on that, but right now we're just talking
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          2  about 27 vehicles.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But Mr. Chairman,

          4  that's not the case with the first bill. The first

          5  draft. I mean, conceivably we were concerned and

          6  that's all I was talking about. It could, the way it

          7  was written, lead to thousands of vehicles being put

          8  on the road.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. Well, right

         10  now, just so everybody is clear, the bill is, it's

         11  practically a five-line bill. That says that we want

         12  the TLC to approve a vehicle that can be used for

         13  those 27 medallions that have already been bid upon.

         14  It's like a five-line vehicle, and we want you to do

         15  it within 30 days.

         16                 If you think 30 days is unreasonable,

         17  maybe we can think about modifying that time frame,

         18  but it's a very simple bill right now, we just want

         19  a vehicle that those medallions, those special

         20  medallions, 27 of them can be affixed to.

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Understood.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The other comment

         23  that you mentioned, and, you know, it kind of, it's

         24  a little bit, I don't want to say disturbing, but it

         25  doesn't make us happy either, is that while we agree
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          2  that the inspections are taking place three times a

          3  year and that these are efficient vehicles, and that

          4  they do to some extent keep our air in New York City

          5  clean, the whole purpose behind these special

          6  medallions is for us to jointly voice our opinion

          7  that the vehicles are not clean enough and that we

          8  need to make progress towards getting even cleaner

          9  vehicles so that we can keep our air cleaner in New

         10  York City.

         11                 And so the comments about how the

         12  vehicles are already clean, it almost indicates a

         13  lack of urgency.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And that is exactly

         16  what we're addressing through this legislation, a

         17  perceived lack of urgency to making these vehicles

         18  acceptable for use as taxicabs.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Mr. Chairman,

         20  could I just briefly address that?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Maybe I was

         23  misunderstood. I do believe that this is a matter

         24  that is a top priority. But what I was talking

         25  about, that I was trying to make a point of
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          2  reference, because you had brought up that that TLC

          3  had not been moving fast enough, I just wanted to

          4  point out that we have been working on the issue of

          5  clean air, however we get there with available

          6  technology and the ways to regulate these things for

          7  years, and that when we would not even, when hybrid

          8  electric vehicles weren't even a thought, we were

          9  doing so much with gas vehicles, and that's really

         10  the point I wanted to make.

         11                 And I also don't want the public to

         12  have the perception that these vehicles are

         13  dirtiest. They are among the cleanest, and are the

         14  cleanest, in my view, gas fuel vehicles. But I don't

         15  want that to be construed. I do agree with you that

         16  we need to do more. We should always be looking to

         17  do things that are better and higher, and I think

         18  that having hybrid electrics with the 13,000 cab

         19  fleet will make a tremendous difference in putting

         20  us off the chart in terms of clean air. And we're

         21  excited about that.

         22                 So, I just want to make sure we

         23  understand each other. I don't think -- I think

         24  maybe it may have been misunderstood or out of

         25  context.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. We've

          3  been joined by Council Member Eva Moskowitz from

          4  Manhattan.

          5                 At this point I'd like to offer

          6  Council Member Moskowitz the opportunity to vote on

          7  Intro. 312-A, and Intro. 398-A.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I vote aye

          9  on all.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         12  Member Moskowitz.

         13                 We have questions from Council Member

         14  Sears.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair.

         17                 My question is very brief.

         18                 First, I think we're all in agreement

         19  that about how we must really clean up our

         20  environment, so I don't think there is any question

         21  about that.

         22                 I'm a little confused of having -- I

         23  use the taxis, I use the medallions, that you talked

         24  about passenger comfort, how much would the existing

         25  cabs have to be sacrificed in terms of passenger

                                                            70

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  comfort, in order to actually have approval and to

          3  use a hybrid, if they so chose, or to drive one?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Under the first

          5  draft of the bill the real leg room would have been

          6  reduced by over eight inches, which would bring us

          7  to even smaller, a smaller vehicle than the Crown

          8  Victorias were that people complained about by two,

          9  two and a half more inches.

         10                 And people sometimes wonder, how

         11  could six inches make a big difference. When you're

         12  stretching the chassis out and you're dealing with

         13  your legs going off the seat, especially in a

         14  sedan-type of vehicle, you know, that makes a very,

         15  very big difference. So, we would get complaints

         16  about it if every cab was the escape tomorrow,

         17  because it would be smaller than what we committed

         18  to the public in 2001 that we would never go smaller

         19  again. And I don't want to go back to that

         20  commitment we made to the public. That's my concern,

         21  and I don't think it's as important as clean air.

         22                 Clean air is the priority.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I don't have a

         24  question about that. My lack of clarity for my own

         25  thinking is that I've been in the taxis, there are
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          2  some that have good space and there are some that

          3  have for me, at 5'3", so I'm not having very long

          4  legs, have no space. So, my question is: What is the

          5  minimum and maximum of your regulations that would

          6  be sacrificed? Because from my experiences in riding

          7  the taxis, it varies so much. So, that's what I

          8  would like clarified. Are they very rigid in the

          9  restrictions, or is there flexibility, from what

         10  dimension to what dimension?

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, we actually

         12  in 2001 adopted, using the definition in the Society

         13  of Automotive Engineer's Manual, definitions of

         14  what, how cabs should be in the back, how big they

         15  should be, and we set minimum requirements for doing

         16  so.

         17                 The small vehicles that you may be

         18  seeing are just a few left, the way we drafted the

         19  regulations is that as vehicles were taken out of

         20  service, they were replaced, be replaced with the

         21  new vehicle that has increased leg room, and you can

         22  always make more leg room, and our regs don't

         23  prohibit that, but they will prohibit having under a

         24  certain amount of head room or leg room as defined

         25  by our rules and the SAE manual.
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          2                 So to answer your question, there may

          3  be a few that are still out there, but they will be

          4  off the road forever and for good, you know, within

          5  the next year.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Do you have

          7  many of those, or are they very minimal?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: They're very

          9  minimal at this point. Bearing in mind, as you know,

         10  the retirement, the vehicle retirement policy, it's

         11  on a three, and a five-year cycle, depending on

         12  whether you're a fleet or an individual owner.

         13                 So, there are several individual

         14  owners that are out there, and it may seem like it's

         15  taking a little bit longer also, because our regs

         16  provide for a hardship exemption to continue using

         17  that vehicle for another year. And after 9/11, many

         18  individual owners experienced severe economic

         19  hardship and they made applications to keep their

         20  cars on the road for another year, because they lost

         21  a significant amount of their business.

         22                 So, we allowed some of them to stay

         23  on the road a little bit longer, and that's why we

         24  have some of them out there. But they will at a

         25  point in time in their future be gone entirely.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Have you either

          3  taken a poll directly of the passengers? Is there

          4  something that's in a taxi that a passenger could

          5  fill in and leave there?

          6                 Have you actually asked the

          7  passengers if they would accept a reduction in

          8  space, as from what you're saying?

          9                 Has that process started?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, through the

         11  3-1-1 hot line and through our website we get mail

         12  all the time.

         13                 I can't tell you --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Is that mail

         15  addressing the answer to my question?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: No, it has not

         17  been.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: But we do have

         20  tons of mail prior to us enacting those regs in 2001

         21  complaining about how the stretches are too small.

         22                 So, one of the things that we're

         23  doing on Monday --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, then they

         25  may be in the old vehicles that you just said to me
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          2  that I probably was riding in.

          3                 If they're saying they're too small,

          4  perhaps those 3-1-1 calls, they had been riding in

          5  the vehicles that you suggested I may be in, because

          6  I thought they were too small.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's a thing of

          8  the past.

          9                 We received a lot of letters and

         10  complaints.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So then those

         12  complaints were probably diminished just as those

         13  vehicles are off the road in time.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, the

         15  complaints come in when there's something out there

         16  that people are complaining about.

         17                 Since these new hybrids that are

         18  smaller are not now on the road in large scale, at

         19  all actually, we're not getting the complaints.

         20                 The purpose of the rule-making

         21  process, and that's why I recommend it, is that, you

         22  know, we do hear from the public. They have their

         23  opportunity and the right to come in and present the

         24  testimony on how they feel about it, and there are

         25  various ways in which we can do that.
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          2                 But to answer your specific question,

          3  no, we have not heard from people on whether -- it

          4  would sacrifice hybrids for less space.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Maybe you might

          6  want to think about that, and just begin to take a

          7  pilot poll of using that questionnaire in one or two

          8  sentences? Can you do that?

          9                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We might be able

         10  to actually put together a focus group like we have

         11  in the past.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That would

         13  help.

         14                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: We'll look into

         15  it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I suggest you

         17  do that.

         18                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's a good

         19  suggestion.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: And we'll get you

         23  the numbers on how many are out there if you'd like.

         24  We can get that to you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. Yes,
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          2  thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          4  Member Sears.

          5                 We have a last set of questions from

          6  Council Member Lopez, after which we'll hear from a

          7  panel consisting of Mel Miller and Vincent Sapone.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Commissioner, I am

          9  very taken about your concern of the size of the

         10  car, and the concern that you have about people

         11  being comfortable inside of those cars, because I am

         12  wondering here, are you concerned about the disabled

         13  community also who want to ride the taxis and that's

         14  the reason you are concerned about this bill? Or the

         15  disabled community is not taken in consideration in

         16  regard to the size of the car and all of this

         17  concern that you have? That has been the thoughts of

         18  yours?

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, I am

         20  certainly concerned. I mean, if I could snap my

         21  fingers and make manufacturers produce a vehicle

         22  that would be big enough and appropriate enough for

         23  the disabled community --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: That exists

         25  already, Commissioner. The car, the prototype have
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          2  been used around the world, they exist, they are in

          3  place, they can be used. I am curious, when you are

          4  arguing against this bill, that you claim the sizes

          5  of the cars people wanted, because it's comfortable,

          6  it's great, it's fascinating, how good they feel, I

          7  am curious to know, Commissioner, what you think in

          8  regard to that, connected to the disabled community?

          9  Because so far in regard of the disabled community,

         10  I have never hear you being so concerned about the

         11  size of the car, and I want to know if it's

         12  connected or not.

         13                 I want to know the contradiction

         14  here, what it's about.

         15                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's possible,

         16  Council member, we don't talk enough, because --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: No, we don't talk

         18  enough, because you make promises to me that you

         19  never fulfill.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, I wanted to

         21  keep this hearing --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: You made those

         23  promises and not comply it (sic). I would like to

         24  know about the question of the disabled community,

         25  the size of the car and this bill. I want to
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          2  understand that.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, to answer

          4  your question --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Intro. 642.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: It's connected to

          7  this. The Commissioner is arguing that the size of

          8  the cars are important for the comfortness (sic) of

          9  the riders. Disabled people need cars that are

         10  comfortable, and these cars and these issues are

         11  interconnected. Then I want to hear what the

         12  Commissioner have to say in regard to that.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, to address

         14  your specific question regarding the bill, the Ford

         15  Escapes would not be able to be used for wheelchair

         16  accessibility. They're too small.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you for

         18  bringing that issue finally out.

         19                 Now, I want to understand the

         20  contradiction. Because the disabled community have

         21  not been taken in consideration in your testimony

         22  there, and I want to hear why.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I would

         24  respectfully disagree with you. I am taking into

         25  consideration. I would like to make the
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          2  manufacturers build something that's bigger. We

          3  talked to them, we want to make sure that they will

          4  not only make it bigger for passengers, but for all

          5  passengers.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And that include

          7  the disabled community?

          8                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Absolutely. That's

          9  part of my point here. I don't want to rush to

         10  judgment and put a small vehicle out there. That

         11  would be shortchanging the accessible community.

         12                 If we put thousands of Ford Escapes

         13  out there that can't possibly put ramps in and put

         14  people in wheelchairs in there, then we would be

         15  short circuiting actually your goals and the other

         16  work that we're doing in other areas.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And how about your

         18  goals? Your goals is to include them?

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Absolutely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And then if you do

         21  your goals just to include them, then I guess that

         22  this bill is problematic in that regard then, and

         23  you will not say it until I ask you, and until I put

         24  you to answer me the question.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, I was trying

                                                            80

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEES

          2  to --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Commissioner?

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We have a lot of

          6  other people to hear from. The discussion should be

          7  limited to 642. To answer Council Member Lopez's

          8  question, Intro. 642 would not achieve the goals

          9  that she is looking for either. So, it's not

         10  necessary for you to answer those questions at this

         11  point.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Well, we disagree,

         13  Mr. Chairman, because I believe that if we're

         14  discussing the creation of a car that is going to be

         15  efficient, efficiency include not only the question

         16  of cleaning the air, but efficiency to serve the

         17  entire City population, and that include disabled

         18  people.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Your

         20  point is well taken.

         21                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We are now going to

         24  hear from Mel Miller and Vincent Sapone. After this

         25  panel, we'll hear from Wendy Neu and Todd Sigaty.
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          2                 MR. MILLER: Mr. Chairman, and members

          3  of the Committee, I'm going to be very, very brief.

          4  I listened with a great deal of attention to the

          5  Commissioner's remarks. And Mr. Speaker, could you

          6  please --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please identify

          8  yourself for the record.

          9                 MR. MILLER: My name is Mel Miller. I

         10  represent Eugene Friedman and the group of people

         11  who actually purchased 18 or 19 alternate fuel

         12  vehicles at the auction that was held in October of

         13  the year 2004.

         14                 The vehicles were purchased by an

         15  up-set price that was fixed by the Taxi and

         16  Limousine Commission. We did not fix the price. The

         17  vehicles were purchased with knowledge on everybody

         18  that at the time of purchase, time of auction, there

         19  was not an alternative fuel vehicle that had been

         20  approved by the TLC. There were a few old CNG

         21  vehicles that will be systematically retired.

         22                 However, and I don't want to get into

         23  detail, because there is a lawsuit involved, that

         24  grows out of the auction. The present bill,

         25  Councilwoman Lopez, affects a very small number of
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          2  vehicles, the 19 vehicles that came out of that

          3  auction.

          4                 And I would normally, Mr. Chairman,

          5  and members of the Committee, having spent a

          6  considerable amount of time in the Legislature,

          7  deferred to an agency when you're getting into

          8  highly technical issues.

          9                 I would defer, except Mr. Friedman

         10  and the purchasers, one of the purchasers, lost a

         11  spouse in 9/11, the purchasers offered to the TLC a

         12  two-year experiment with the Ford Escape. Realizing

         13  it did not conform to normal TLC standards, but what

         14  they did when I was at the meeting, all we did was

         15  come in and say to the Commission, we know there is

         16  nothing out there, we have spoken to Ford about the

         17  Escape, we realize it would need certain

         18  modifications, you would probably have to take away

         19  the separation and you use cameras, as we have

         20  authorized in other situations, and we'll put it out

         21  there for two years for a number of reasons. One

         22  reason is we do not know whether or not the

         23  alternative fuel technology will work in a New York

         24  City taxicab that is run with the number of miles a

         25  taxicab is run in New York City.
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          2                 Why? Because the maintenance is more

          3  difficult, there aren't that many people who have

          4  been trained in new maintenance, and, of course, a

          5  yellow taxi means a lot of maintenance.

          6                 Secondly, if you approve another

          7  vehicle in the interim, we will get rid of the

          8  Escapes and buy another vehicle. So, it wasn't that

          9  we were saying use this vehicle and no other

         10  vehicle, we were saying do exactly what the

         11  Commissioner said. Run a program for a period of two

         12  years or less, if there's another vehicle that comes

         13  along. We will keep records on cost and maintenance

         14  so we will know whether or not these vehicles   can

         15  hold up. Ford had agreed to do the taxi package on

         16  the Escape. There was already an agreement made with

         17  Ford, their basic seller in the City of New York.

         18                 So, we're not asking -- the reason

         19  we're supporting the bill here is we have done

         20  everything possible to put an alternative fuel

         21  vehicle, even supporting a CNG application, which by

         22  the way has been granted by both NYSERDA at the

         23  State level, and at the federal level they're

         24  actually going to be available in 2005 and 2006

         25  Fords with CNGs.
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          2                 So, there are available vehicles to

          3  test alternative fuel to start a clean-air program.

          4  This bill is not a mandate for the industry. I would

          5  not support, nor would my client support a mandate.

          6  It's too early. But if we test them, as the

          7  wheelchair accessible vehicles are now being tested,

          8  because they were all bought at the last auction,

          9  they are on the road, by the same client. He bought

         10  those and he put them out on the road. Now, all

         11  we're asking the Council to do is to push the TLC to

         12  let this group of purchasers close and put vehicles

         13  out on the road. We will adhere to TLC standards. We

         14  will work with them. We will keep records. We're not

         15  in opposition to them. Unfortunately, this matter

         16  has ended up in court.

         17                 I ask your support of the

         18  legislation. I want to thank Mr. Yassky and the

         19  Chair for working with us on the legislation.

         20                 I think the A bill is better because

         21  it's more circumspect. It won't lead to a

         22  proliferation of vehicles, and it will give us the

         23  opportunity to run a true pilot program, something

         24  we suggested it was in November of 2004. We made the

         25  same recommendation that's in this piece of
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          2  legislation.

          3                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          5                 Mr. Sapone.

          6                 MR. SAPONE: Oh, no questions for him?

          7                 Good morning, Mr. Chairman, and City

          8  Council members.

          9                 Today I'm here, I'm sort of in the

         10  middle of the road with everything. First I want to

         11  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Sapone, could

         13  you identify yourself for the record?

         14                 MR. SAPONE: Oh, I'm sorry. My name is

         15  Vincent Sapone. I'm Managing Director of the League

         16  of Mutual Taxi owners in Manhattan. We have

         17  approximately 3,200 members of owner drivers, which

         18  own one taxi and drive it themselves.

         19                 What I would like to do is

         20  congratulate Councilman Yasski. Since I've been

         21  hearing him talk over the years, the first time he

         22  said the word optional, in other words, don't do it

         23  and you have to do it.

         24                 Optional I like. Okay? To tell you

         25  the truth, the hybrid, if somebody wants it, I don't
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          2  care, let them buy it.

          3                 But, you know, also, the TLC comes

          4  out with very interesting points. Councilman Sears,

          5  I believe, is she here? She talked about roominess

          6  in a cab. I speak to 50 guys a day, at least, if not

          7  100, and you know what? Everyone is saying, as far

          8  as the passengers are saying, it's a pleasure to

          9  ride in this air conditioned roomy car, okay? And

         10  I'm not going to trade off health for comfort, but

         11  what TLC is saying is that it took us a long time to

         12  get to this point with these stretch limos, Crown

         13  Vics. They are comfortable, they ride good, they are

         14  cleaner. Cleaner than your car and cleaner than

         15  mine. They're tested three times a year. But you

         16  know what? If his client wants to put out, what is

         17  it, 18 or whatever, I got no qualms with that.

         18  That's fine with me, you know? But the TLC, you

         19  know, they've been handling cars, they make sure it

         20  meets the specs, they make sure it's safe, they make

         21  sure it's clean. You don't know what I go through

         22  with them. And, you know, they're not so wrong

         23  either. But today I say, if a guy wants to put out

         24  18, if it's safe, if the TLC okays it, that's fine

         25  with me.
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          2                 But in the future, I don't want

          3  someone here coming to me and telling me you've got

          4  to get a $50,000 $60,000 car because it's cleaner.

          5  You know, if you want to ride first class in an

          6  airplane, it costs you a thousand dollars extra. You

          7  want to give us the money, I'll buy anything, my men

          8  will buy anything you want. I'm a working man. We

          9  average 40-50,000 a year, plus we have expenses.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. Sapone, I'd like

         11  to ask you to limit your eloquent remarks to 642-A.

         12                 MR. SAPONE: Okay. I'm sorry. You mean

         13  I was going off track? I always go off track.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I have other people

         15  who are going to testify.

         16                 MR. SAPONE: All right. Anyway, I have

         17  no qualms if someone wants to put 18 on the road,

         18  but you know what? The TLC must oversee it and make

         19  sure it's safe.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         21                 There are no questions for this

         22  panel. Thank you very much for your information. We

         23  now invite Wendy Neu from E2 and Todd Sigaty, from

         24  the Coalition for Smart Transport.

         25                 Yes, and while they're preparing to
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          2  testify, we would like to ask Council Members Jim

          3  Gennaro and Helen Foster for their vote on Intro.

          4  398-A concerning making our New York City ferries

          5  accessible to people who use wheelchairs and

          6  scooters.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: And these are the

          8  two remaining members of the Committee on the

          9  Disability Committee.

         10                 Council Member Foster.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Council Member

         13  Gennaro.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I vote aye.

         15  I'm proud to be a sponsor of this legislation, and I

         16  thank both chairs for their leadership on this

         17  important legislation. I vote aye.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: Thank you to both

         19  of you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It appears then that

         21  Intro. 398-A has been passed unanimously.

         22                 Congratulations to the community and

         23  to Council Member Margarita Lopez.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I might add that

         25  the sponsorship of this bill go all the way to 47
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          2  members, and I believe it's only three of the

          3  members that had not put their name down because

          4  they became after members elected and I'm going to

          5  speak with them to make sure that this bill is not

          6  only approved unanimously but a sponsor unanimously.

          7  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. We will

          9  now proceed back to testimony on 642-A.

         10                 Wendy Neu, and Todd Sigaty. After

         11  these two individuals testify, we'll hear from Bob

         12  Muldoon, Katharine Stahnke, and Mark Eizeman.

         13                 Ms. Neu.

         14                 MS. NEU: Thank you. Good morning, Mr.

         15  Chairman. I am here today representing the New York

         16  Chapter of Environmental Entrepreneurs, E2. E2 is a

         17  national organization of business and professional

         18  people who support good environmental policies,

         19  based on their economic merits.

         20                 E2 members have founded hundreds of

         21  companies creating hundreds of thousands of jobs,

         22  and control tens of billions of dollars in

         23  investment capital. We work in a wide variety of

         24  business sectors, and have come together to advocate

         25  public policy that makes both environmental and
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          2  economic sense.

          3                 We would like to commend you, Mr.

          4  Chairman, along with Speaker Miller and Council

          5  Member Yassky for introducing Bill 642-A that would

          6  ensure the clean and efficient hybrid vehicles could

          7  be used as yellow taxicabs in New York City.

          8                 We are pleased to be here today to

          9  testify on behalf of this landmarked bill.

         10                 We are also submitting with this

         11  testimony a letter signed by more than 50 members of

         12  E2 New York, supporting legislation to allow the use

         13  of hybrid vehicles as yellow taxis.

         14                 E2 supports this bill for three

         15  fundamental reasons: First, including hybrid

         16  electric vehicles in the City's taxi fleet would

         17  significantly improve the City's air quality.

         18                 Tailpipe emissions from the hybrids

         19  is dramatically less than that of traditional

         20  gasoline vehicles, especially the Ford Crown

         21  Victorias, that currently make up over 94 percent of

         22  the taxi fleet. Indeed, data show that converting

         23  the full fleet of New York City taxis to hybrids

         24  could result in a reduction of more than 4 million

         25  pounds per year of nitrate oxides, carbon monoxides,
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          2  particulate matter and other pollutants.

          3                 Second, hybrid vehicles can

          4  significantly reduce release of global warming

          5  pollutants, and reduce our dependence on foreign

          6  oil.

          7                 It is estimated the conversion of the

          8  City's taxi fleet to hybrids could slash carbon

          9  dioxide emissions, a primary greenhouse gas

         10  pollutant by one-third, saving New York City air

         11  from nearly 250 million pounds per year. The

         12  equivalent of removing 24,000 passenger cars from

         13  the road for one year.

         14                 And according to the United States

         15  Department of Energy, hybrids have the potential to

         16  be two to three times more fuel efficient than

         17  traditional cars.

         18                 In fact, the Ford Escape hybrid

         19  currently has an in-City federal fuel rating of 36

         20  miles per gallon, in comparison to the Crown

         21  Victoria's 18 miles per gallon in City rating.

         22                 Lastly, because of the tremendous

         23  fuel savings, hybrids make economic sense for

         24  hard-working taxi divers.

         25                 According to the Natural Resource
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          2  Defense Council, the use of hybrid cars could save

          3  drivers as much as $17,000 over the five-year life

          4  of a clean air taxi. This is based on $2 per gallon

          5  of gasoline.

          6                 We thank you and the Council again

          7  for introducing this bill and strongly encourage its

          8  enactment as swiftly as possible.

          9                 E2 stands ready to assist the Council

         10  to help New York City become a leader in sustainable

         11  vehicle policies around the country. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Ms. Neu.

         13  Mr. Sigaty. And please identify yourself for the

         14  record.

         15                 MR. SIGATY: Thank you.

         16                 My name is Todd Sigaty, and I'm the

         17  founder and a member of the coalition advocating for

         18  smart transportation.

         19                 First of all, I just want to thank

         20  Chairman Liu and David Yassky and the other Council

         21  members for bringing Bill 642 forward. And I think

         22  it's a very good opportunity here to present a few

         23  issues.

         24                 I just want to briefly mention a few

         25  things you might know, and then actually a few
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          2  things that you might not yet know in response to

          3  some things set today.

          4                 First of all, CAST, the Coalition for

          5  Smart Transportation, is an organization based here

          6  in New York that is members of both the

          7  environmental and also public health community, some

          8  of them who couldn't be here today. And also public

          9  and private sector interested in this as a business

         10  venture as well.

         11                 First of all, I also want to commend

         12  you for passage of 496, that have a nine percent

         13  requirement both for wheelchair accessibility and

         14  for alternative vehicles. That was a landmarked

         15  piece of legislation throughout the United States,

         16  it stands as a symbol for other cities. Other people

         17  who I have talked to, and other mayors from other

         18  cities, that that has been a symbol that other

         19  people are trying to obtain, and I think New York

         20  City should continue that leadership on this issue.

         21                 We talked to the Mayor's Office of

         22  San Francisco, Miami yesterday, and this is

         23  something they're asking questions about and we

         24  should be the forefront of that in New York.

         25                 I think we also recognize, though,
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          2  that 496 is passed, I want to thank the Chairman for

          3  mentioning that was two years ago, and there still

          4  hasn't been a license that has been approved or a

          5  vehicle on the road yet that we can show as an

          6  example, and I think that 642 will respond to that

          7  and solve that in a very efficient manner.

          8                 Let me quickly go through some

          9  points. As you know, of course, the emissions, it is

         10  clear that the hybrids will reduce emissions 90

         11  percent. Also, it's twice the gas mileage. Now, the

         12  gas mileage this year is a reduction of cost, but

         13  it's also a reduction of time for taxi drivers.

         14                 I spent a lot of hours riding around

         15  taxis and talking to taxi drivers, hanging out at

         16  Curry Hill, many hours spending time talking with

         17  them about what they need and what they want.

         18                 To save money for them, not only on

         19  the fuel cost, which is up to $4,000 a year, which

         20  is a New York Times' study, but actually that they

         21  would only have to fuel up at every other shift,

         22  would also save them time. And I think that's a real

         23  issue that hasn't been brought out. This is

         24  something that they would want.

         25                 Also, there's a national security
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          2  issue here as well with reducing the dependence on

          3  foreign oil.

          4                 Today right now the Energy Committee,

          5  the Energy Bill is at the Finance Committee in DC,

          6  and they're talking about credits for hybrids, and

          7  we have some staff there, everybody is working on

          8  that issue. It's very important on that issue.

          9                 The health issue of course, you know,

         10  New York City being the number one City for asthma

         11  is not a good thing to be proud of. I was driven

         12  over here today by a livery driver who is an

         13  African-American woman from Benine, who contracted

         14  asthma last year. She complete her master's, she's

         15  looking for a job driving a livery, and now she has

         16  asthma from driving through the tunnel and all these

         17  issues.

         18                 Does that have to happen? No. I

         19  discussed this bill with her, she wanted to come up

         20  here and testify today. These are the kind of people

         21  who need assistance from 642.

         22                 There's over 40,000 taxi drivers, and

         23  even more people driving liveries, which is another

         24  issue on the private sector that we're addressing

         25  for hybrids.
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          2                 One of the people I work with has a

          3  Lexus hybrid. I'll tell you, you're not going to get

          4  in a more comfortable vehicle than a Lexus hybrid.

          5  And if somebody wants to go out and buy one of these

          6  and put it on the market and sell it as a taxi,

          7  isn't that their right? Isn't that the right of them

          8  to take that investment? And we're working on that

          9  investment.

         10                 Let me just mention the incentives.

         11  Some of the hybrids are a little bit more costly.

         12  However, currently there's a $3,000 sales tax

         13  exemption by New York State, and we're going to work

         14  to continue that one. There's a $2,000 deduction

         15  under the tax bill and the IRS, and we're going to

         16  work to continue that one, and today testimony is

         17  being held in Washington, D.C. of the Finance

         18  Committee to make a credit for six years for buying

         19  hybrid vehicles. So, you can go out today and buy a

         20  Ford Escape, buy a Toyota Highlander, even a Lexus,

         21  and it's not going to cost you any much more than a

         22  Ford Crown Victoria, and you're going to meet your

         23  emissions and provide an alternative on the market

         24  if people are demanding.

         25                 Real quickly I want to mention a few
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          2  things. I think the public health issue has not been

          3  mentioned today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: It has been

          5  mentioned extensively today.

          6                 I mean, I have a question on your

          7  testimony. It says hybrid vehicles reduce emissions

          8  over 90 percent?

          9                 MR. SIGATY: Um-hmm.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Does that mean a

         11  hybrid vehicle only produces ten percent of the

         12  emissions of traditional taxicab --

         13                 MR. SIGATY: The range of statistics

         14  go from 60 percent to 90 percent. There has been

         15  taxis actually tested, both in Vancouver, San

         16  Francisco and even London, England. People have been

         17  driving hybrid taxis for up to 200,000 miles to test

         18  emissions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: The hybrid vehicle,

         20  in New York City, New York City taxicabs are far

         21  larger than the worldwide average taxicab.

         22                 MR. SIGATY: I know.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, I think we're

         24  not necessarily looking to use the smallest hybrid

         25  vehicle that's available on the market either.
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          2                 MR. SIGATY: Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Because at some

          4  point all New Yorkers are also willing to demand

          5  that comfort.

          6                 MR. SIGATY: Can I respond to that

          7  real quick? Because we did a speculations test. True

          8  the Ford Escape is smaller, there's no doubt about

          9  it, but if you look at a Toyota Highlander which

         10  currently --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No, all I'm saying,

         12  I think it would be incredible if we could reduce

         13  emissions by 90 percent by requiring hybrid

         14  vehicles. But I'm not sure if going from the current

         15  Crown Victoria to something like the Ford Escape or

         16  Toyota Highlander would actually achieve that 90

         17  percent emission savings.

         18                 MS. NEU: I'd just like to make one

         19  note, and this relates to what you just were saying.

         20                 I think one of the most important

         21  aspects of this bill is the message that it sends to

         22  the automobile manufacturers, and if for no other

         23  reason, that this should be a reason why this bill

         24  is passed.

         25                 If we do not start sending messages
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          2  to these manufacturers, we are never going to have

          3  the kinds of vehicles that are fuel efficient and

          4  reduced emissions and accessible to communities,

          5  such as the disabled.

          6                 So, getting a message from New York

          7  is very powerful, and I think will give a lot of

          8  influence in terms of the design of future vehicles.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.

         10                 And we certainly want to send

         11  messages, but we also want to clean the air in our

         12  City as well.

         13                 I'd like to take testimony from the

         14  next few individuals who would like to offer their

         15  comments as well.

         16                 I'm happy to listen to more

         17  information from CAST, as well, but I'd like to hear

         18  testimony from the others.

         19                 MR. SIGATY: Well, thank you very

         20  much, John.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: At this moment,

         22  Mr. Chairman, I want to close the portion of the

         23  hearing that pertain to the Committee that I am the

         24  Chair. As the Chair of that Committee I would like

         25  to close that portion at this moment after we pass
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          2  the piece of legislation that was pending for us.

          3                 For the public that is here, at this

          4  moment the Committee on Mental Health, Mental

          5  Retardation, Alcoholism, Substance Abuse and

          6  Disability Services has concluded the aspect of the

          7  issue that we were dealing in conjunction with the

          8  Committee on Transportation.

          9                 Thank you for coming here today. And

         10  today is a great day. And to Frieda Zames, it's a

         11  victory for you, my sister.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Congratulations,

         14  Council Member Lopez, and to the community.

         15                 At this point, we will hear from Bob

         16  Muldoon from the Sierra Club, Katharine Stahnke from

         17  the League of Conservation Voters and Mark Izeman

         18  from Natural Resources Defense Council.

         19                 Please identify yourself before you

         20  proceed with your testimony. Or any order in which

         21  you would like to go.

         22                 MR. MULDOON: I'll just go ahead. Good

         23  afternoon, or good morning. My name is Bob Muldoon,

         24  Associate Regional Representative with the National

         25  Sierra Club Field Office in New York City.
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          2                 The Sierra Club is one of the oldest

          3  and largest grassroots environmental organizations

          4  in the country, with over 750,000 members

          5  nationwide, and over 15,000 members in New York.

          6                 We want to thank Council Members

          7  Yassky and Liu for introducing this legislation that

          8  would allow hybrid electric vehicles to be used as

          9  taxis. Hybrid electric vehicles are much cleaner,

         10  much cheaper to operate, and will lower our

         11  dependence on foreign oil.

         12                 They can cut smog pollutants by up to

         13  80 percent, reduce greenhouse gas emissions by up to

         14  50 percent, double gas mileage and cut fuel costs in

         15  half.

         16                 Almost a year ago the Sierra Club

         17  began meeting with the Taxi and Limousine Commission

         18  staff to address their concern about hybrid electric

         19  vehicles for use as taxis.

         20                 Over the course of these meetings we

         21  provided research showing that these are mainstream,

         22  reliable vehicles that do not require special

         23  maintenance, special fuel, or plug-in or any

         24  investment in infrastructure.

         25                 Hybrid cars run on gas like any
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          2  standard car and the battery never needs recharging.

          3                 The battery in hybrid technology have

          4  manufacturer warranties of a minimum of eight years

          5  or 100,000 miles.

          6                 Throughout our meetings, the only

          7  real concern the TLC raised was the size of the

          8  vehicles. The largest hybrid on the market at the

          9  time, the Ford Escape, is an SUV that we concede is

         10  smaller than the stretch Crown Victoria, of course.

         11  However, the TLC has allowed different sized

         12  vehicles to be used as taxis, including the Ford

         13  Explorer, the Honda Oddesy, the Isuzu Oasis and the

         14  Toyota Sienna.

         15                 Attached to our testimony is a

         16  profile of the current fleet that we FOIL'd from

         17  TLC. Despite receiving 19 bids for alternative fuel

         18  vehicle medallions last fall, the TLC declined to

         19  approve the Escape hybrid SUV and the bids remain in

         20  limbo.

         21                 In the meantime, the City of San

         22  Francisco introduced 15 Ford Escape hybrids as taxis

         23  on a trial basis, and we've attached the article and

         24  the contacts in San Francisco.

         25                 These hybrids have received praise by
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          2  San Francisco cabbies driving them, who have been

          3  especially happy about cutting their fuel costs in

          4  half.

          5                 Around the same time, three larger

          6  hybrid models hit the market, the Toyota Highlander,

          7  hybrid SUV, the Accord hybrid sedan, and the Lexus

          8  RX 400H luxury SUV.

          9                 In addition to the TLC, we reached

         10  out to the taxi industry to get their support.

         11                 Earlier this month we arranged a ride

         12  and drive meeting where they could see some of the

         13  latest hybrids.

         14                 We appreciate the opportunity to

         15  speak with these representatives, and hope to

         16  continue to dialogue with them on hybrids and get

         17  their advice and support as hybrids are introduced

         18  into the taxi fleet.

         19                 So, we hope that this legislation

         20  will allow the bidders of the 19 AFE medallions last

         21  fall to quickly move forward with their bids.

         22                 We're glad this legislation will open

         23  up hybrids for use as taxis, and we also hope that

         24  this legislation will avoid any further confusion

         25  over bids for AFE medallions so future bids are not
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          2  discouraged.

          3                 Let's be clear on what would happen

          4  with this bill. The legislation would not force

          5  cabbies to drive hybrid electric vehicles. Instead,

          6  it would make them approved vehicles for use as

          7  taxis. It will be up to medallion owners to try out

          8  a hybrid electric vehicle.

          9                 In closing, the leg work has been

         10  done. All of the parties have had an opportunity to

         11  see and evaluate hybrid electric vehicles. Bids have

         12  been made for alternative fuel vehicle medallions,

         13  and there is interest in the taxi industry in using

         14  hybrid electric vehicles.

         15                 Hybrid electric vehicles are

         16  mainstream vehicles, and the number of hybrid models

         17  currently on the market is growing each year.

         18                 San Francisco has moved ahead of us

         19  and has already rolled out a small fleet of hybrid

         20  taxis.

         21                 The hybrid air has arrived. We have

         22  waited long enough. It's time to approve some of the

         23  hybrid electric vehicles now currently on the market

         24  so cabbies can use this breakthrough technology to

         25  drive cleaner, more fuel efficient vehicles.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          4                 MS. STAHNKE: Good afternoon. My name

          5  is Katharine Stahnke. I'm here on behalf of Craig

          6  Wilson and the New York League of Conservation

          7  Voters.

          8                 Founded in 1989, the League is a

          9  nonpartisan political arm of New York's

         10  environmental community, and seeks to make

         11  conservation and natural resource protection top

         12  priorities among New York's elected officials,

         13  political candidates, businesses and voters.

         14                 On behalf of the league, I am pleased

         15  to be here today to offer our full support for the

         16  Clean Air Taxi Bill being considered before the

         17  Transportation Subcommittee.

         18                 Emissions for motor vehicles are the

         19  largest source of climate change and air quality

         20  concerns in the United States, accounting for 24

         21  percent of particulate matter, 40 percent of

         22  hydrocarbons, 49 percent of nitrogen oxide, 77

         23  percent of carbon monoxide and 60 percent of carbon

         24  dioxide emissions.

         25                 Passenger vehicles alone release over
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          2  1.2 million tons of pollutants into New York City's

          3  air every single year.

          4                 Particle pollution and the high

          5  levels of ozone caused by the vehicles clogging our

          6  streets result in pollution concentrations that are

          7  at times among the nation's worse.

          8                 These figures are particularly

          9  alarming considering that over 60 percent of

         10  residents use mass transportation and less than half

         11  of New Yorkers own an automobile.

         12                 A significant number of New Yorkers

         13  rely on taxicabs for transportation.

         14                 In 2003 there were over 238 million

         15  riders alone, and there are over 12,500 taxis

         16  currently in operation.

         17                 Consequently, New York City has a

         18  great opportunity to increase alternative fuel and

         19  hybrid vehicle use. These vehicles are already

         20  heavily regulated by the Taxi and Limousine

         21  Commission, which set standards for space

         22  requirements, vehicle turnover periods and emissions

         23  testing.

         24                 Over 90 percent of the taxicabs

         25  currently in use are the famous Ford Crown Victoria,
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          2  which on average achieves approximately 18 miles per

          3  gallon and scores very low on the EPA's air

          4  pollution and greenhouse gas emissions scoring

          5  system.

          6                 Gasoline electric hybrid vehicles

          7  already on the market can dramatically reduce

          8  harmful emissions and save taxi drivers gas money

          9  without ever having to be plugged in.

         10                 However, none of the hybrid models

         11  available today meet TLC space specifications, by

         12  less than 12 inches in some instances.

         13                 This legislation requires the TLC

         14  Commissioner to approve an available hybrid vehicle

         15  for use as a taxicab, thus allowing for the taxicab

         16  fleet to begin transition towards cleaner and more

         17  economical vehicles.

         18                 While the legislation stipulates that

         19  only one hybrid vehicle must be approved, the League

         20  encourages TLC to approve at least two hybrids, if

         21  not more for use.

         22                 The Clean Air Taxi Bill represents

         23  the vital first step towards a cleaner fleet of our

         24  world famous New York City taxicabs. The League

         25  strongly urges the Transportation Committee and the
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          2  full City Council to move quickly to approve this

          3  bill, and set goals for approving future hybrid

          4  vehicles for use as taxicabs.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And Mr.

          7  Izeman.

          8                 MR. IZEMAN: Good morning. My name is

          9  Mark Izeman. I'm a senior attorney with the Natural

         10  Resources Defense Council, which as the Committee

         11  knows, has been working on New York City

         12  environmental issues more than 20 years, including

         13  transportation issues and clean air issues.

         14                 We're also happy to be here to offer

         15  our strong support for this legislation and

         16  encourage its swift enactment and implementation.

         17                 Many of my colleagues have already

         18  made excellent points in the public health and

         19  environmental benefits, but I'm just going to

         20  briefly reiterate a few of them.

         21                 Before doing so, I just want to

         22  commend you, as Chairman and Councilman Yassky and

         23  the Speaker, for advancing this path-breaking bill

         24  that will serve as a model for other cities around

         25  the country.
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          2                 Again, there are really four primary

          3  benefits of getting hybrids onto the road.

          4                 One is it improves the air quality in

          5  New York City.

          6                 Two, it can reduce global warming

          7  emissions.

          8                 Three, it can reduce our dependence

          9  on foreign oil.

         10                 And fourth, there are significant

         11  cost savings with taxi drivers and owners.

         12                 Just a couple of key facts on the

         13  first point of public health.

         14                 Our research shows that the Ford

         15  Escape emits 97 percent less hydrocarbon and

         16  nitrogen oxide than the minimum standards for cars.

         17  That answers in part the question you had raised.

         18  For many pollutants it is over 90 percent, the

         19  difference between the Crown Vic, and including the

         20  Crown Vic and the Ford Escape. We can get more

         21  information to you on that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Are you sure about

         23  that? Ninety percent?

         24                 MR. IZEMAN: Again, unfortunately I

         25  don't have that document in front of me, but --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I wish I had known

          3  about that much earlier.

          4                 I mean, you know, you're talking

          5  about going from 18 miles per hour to 36 miles per

          6  hour, but yet doubling the number of miles per

          7  gallon actually reduces emissions by 90 percent?

          8                 MR. IZEMAN: Yes. Again, I will

          9  provide documentation to the Committee.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: All right.

         11                 MR. IZEMAN: Again, based on those two

         12  pollutants is 97 percent, and I'm pretty sure, based

         13  on our research, that the comparison between the

         14  Ford Escape and the Crown Victoria, we're also

         15  looking at a 90 percent reduction on certain

         16  pollutants, even though you're only doubling the

         17  miles per gallon. Or not only, you're doubling the

         18  miles per gallon, but you're also gaining even

         19  greater air pollution reductions.

         20                 We also want to point out that the

         21  Ford Escape is rated a 9.5 out of 10, 10 being the

         22  best, by USEPA for air pollution, the Crown Victoria

         23  scores a 4. And you know, all New York City taxis

         24  were hybrids, just as a theoretical point, over 4

         25  million pounds of pollutants, including carbon
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          2  monoxide and nitrogen oxide each year would be

          3  eliminated.

          4                 Again, one of the second primary

          5  reasons for getting hybrids on the street, hybrid

          6  taxis, is reducing global warming emissions.

          7                 Ms. Neu noted that, again, if all New

          8  York City taxis were converted to hybrid, you'd be

          9  talking about 250 million tons, pounds per year

         10  being taken out which is the equivalent of 24,000

         11  cars.

         12                 Third, putting hybrids as taxis on

         13  the road helps reduce our dependency on foreign oil,

         14  which is something that people in Washington spend a

         15  lot of time thinking about, and as we've already

         16  discussed, the Ford Escape, for example, just on

         17  official ratings, has doubled the miles per gallon

         18  in the Crown Victoria. The Crown Victoria is 18

         19  miles per gallon and the Ford Escape hybrid is 36.

         20  Although studies show that the Crown Victoria in

         21  reality only is about 12 miles per gallon, and the

         22  Ford Escape, like other hybrids, is designed for

         23  stop and go driving. So, the hybrid isn't going to

         24  perform better in the stop and go than the

         25  traditional cars, including the Crown Victoria.
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          2                 The fourth reason that I mentioned

          3  and others have mentioned is that it makes strong

          4  economic sense. Basing, assuming that $2.20 per

          5  gallon cost at the pump, assuming you're driving

          6  about 65,000 miles, drivers could save about $20,000

          7  over five years, which is the life span that is

          8  allowed for an alternative fuel vehicle.

          9                 And we should also add that industry

         10  data indicate that hybrids are comfortable and

         11  reliable.

         12                 Edmunds.com, which is the well-known

         13  car internet site, has stated that the Ford Escape

         14  performs superbly over long rides, and the Dolan

         15  Corporation -- the Donlon Corporation, which is a

         16  fleet management company, shows a higher resale

         17  value for the Escape hybrid than the Crown Victoria.

         18                 And as I believe Bob mentioned, even

         19  though this is a path-breaking piece of legislation,

         20  New York City would not be alone in putting hybrid

         21  taxis on the street. San Francisco already has ten

         22  and that has been well, very well received that

         23  they're going to increase the number next year.

         24                 In closing, Mr. Chairman, we believe

         25  that this bill, if enacted, would be an excellent
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          2  first step to getting hybrids on the road as yellow

          3  taxicabs. It would also be important for New York

          4  City residents, not only for New York City

          5  residents, but for sending a signal around the

          6  country.

          7                 As Councilman Yassky had pointed out,

          8  the yellow taxi is an icon in American culture.

          9  Having a yellow taxi be a hybrid, you can't

         10  underscore how significant that would be, both in

         11  New York City and around the country. And NRDC, as

         12  we have on many other pieces of legislation, look

         13  forward to continuing to work with the Council in

         14  getting this bill passed and implementing it. And as

         15  Mr. Muldoon pointed out, we'd like to work with the

         16  Council and the Administration to advance even more

         17  far-reaching taxi, clean air taxicab legislation,

         18  that could reap even further benefits for New York

         19  City residents, but also begin to address the very

         20  significant global warming and oil dependence issues

         21  that our City faces, our State faces, and this

         22  country faces.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         24  testify today.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: What is the 250
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          2  million pounds of pollutants?

          3                 MR. IZEMAN: That's the carbon

          4  dioxide.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. So, that's how

          6  much we could save by what? By requiring all

          7  taxicabs?

          8                 MR. IZEMAN: Based on the current

          9  hybrid that we're talking about, if all New York

         10  City taxicabs went to that hybrid, you'd be talking

         11  about 250 million pounds of carbon dioxides being

         12  taken out of the air.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And how much of

         14  that, how much carbon dioxide is produced by all of

         15  the vehicles in New York City? Do you have any idea?

         16                 Like, how much -- is 250 million

         17  pounds a year, is that like two percent or is that

         18  like 20 percent?

         19                 MR. IZEMAN: It's a 30 percent

         20  reduction.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: You're saying

         22  taxicabs generate more than 30 percent of all the

         23  air pollution?

         24                 MR. IZEMAN: Well, that must be, that

         25  must be 30 percent of --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Right now you're

          3  saying taxicabs generate about, what, 800 million

          4  pounds of carbon dioxide a year?

          5                 MR. IZEMAN: Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So, you'd be saving

          7  250.

          8                 But how does that compare to -- I

          9  mean, is there any rough estimate of how much

         10  pollution.

         11                 MR. IZEMAN: Well, I don't know

         12  whether we have that exact fact, but I can get that

         13  to the Committee.

         14                 But, again, this is a first step.

         15  This alone is not going to solve New York City's

         16  significant air quality problems, and New York City

         17  was ranked the third worst in the nation last year.

         18                 But this is a good first step towards

         19  getting hybrids in part of the fleet. But

         20  ultimately, you know, you want to see the private

         21  sector, the other taxis, the black taxicabs, as well

         22  as private car switching to hybrid.

         23                 So, again, this alone is not going to

         24  solve our global warming problems, or air quality

         25  problems, but it is a significant first step in
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          2  sending a signal to others in the City and to other

          3  cities that we need to begin to address these

          4  problems.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

          7  Chair. I just wanted to thank you, again. And I

          8  certainly want to thank everyone individually on the

          9  panel and the organizations represented for their

         10  work really over the past three years in promoting

         11  this issue, and pushing it to the point we are

         12  today. I personally thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you for your

         14  time today.

         15                 We have one final witness on Intro.

         16  642-A and that's Michael Harris from the Taxis For

         17  All Campaign.

         18                 You're wearing a different hat this

         19  time. But we are going to listen only to testimony

         20  concerning 642-A.

         21                 Michael, identify yourself for the

         22  record.

         23                 MR. HARRIS: Sure. Michael Harris,

         24  with the Taxis For All Campaign.

         25                 On average a Hummer gets better gas
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          2  mileage than a New York City taxicab, which is to me

          3  a scary thought. And, so, I support the idea of

          4  moving to CNG hybrid vehicles.

          5                 However, what this bill ignores is

          6  the taxi accessibility and CNG hybrid are not

          7  necessarily mutually exclusive. In fact, there are

          8  vehicles available being produced in your home

          9  Borough of Queens which are both CNG hybrid and

         10  accessible. And, so, I want to know why you are

         11  considering a bill, which will inconvenience

         12  disabled riders by not allowing them to use the

         13  vehicles which you are proposing to put on the road.

         14                 The fact is that this still provides

         15  for CNG vehicles, which will not be accessible. The

         16  issue of CNG and the issue of accessibility can come

         17  together. People spoke about federal tax-free

         18  rebates, state rebates, et cetera. I want this

         19  Committee to be aware, there is an $8,000 federal

         20  tax rebate for CNG hybrid vehicles purchased,

         21  however, under federal anti-discrimination law, a

         22  company is ineligible to receive that benefit, that

         23  $8,000 credit, unless that vehicle is accessible to

         24  people with disabilities.

         25                 So, you are costing the $8,000 tax
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          2  credits, as well as the gas credits, by putting on

          3  the road non-accessible CNG vehicles.

          4                 This bill ignores the needs of the

          5  disabled, but more importantly, ignores the economic

          6  benefit, of having CNG hybrid vehicles.

          7                 I think this Committee needs to

          8  recognize that the two issues could be combined. The

          9  current legislation authorizing the sales of the 900

         10  medallions, set aside nine percent for accessible

         11  and nine percent for CNG. And this is doing that

         12  again, it's segregating the two. Why not bring them

         13  together? Why not bring together the issue of taxi

         14  accessibility and environmental pollution. They can

         15  become one issue, make one vehicle, and be better

         16  for the environment and better for the City.

         17                 We can reduce fossil fuels by 20

         18  percent. We can have more tax revenue coming into

         19  New York City, because these vehicles will be

         20  produced by a company in Jamaica, New York, so it's

         21  City tax money that we'll be getting from the

         22  workers. The fact is that this bill ignores disabled

         23  riders. Yes, it's good for the environment. And,

         24  yes, disabled riders want to see CNG vehicles, but

         25  people talk about comfort. Well, I really can't
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          2  speak to comfort of a taxi, because I've only been

          3  in one once, when I happened to get lucky and be

          4  able to hail one of the 29 out of 13,000 taxis in

          5  the City.

          6                 I support CNG hybrid vehicles, but I

          7  cannot support putting another vehicle on the road,

          8  passing a law that will postpone the availability of

          9  accessible vehicles by another three to five years.

         10                 Please consider using one of the two

         11  companies which is in the literature which I gave

         12  Chairman Liu earlier. Either MetroKing Alternative

         13  Fuel in Jamaica, the GSN Vehicles in Plattsburgh.

         14  Either one of them are more than willing to show

         15  prototypes of CNG hybrid accessible vehicles. They

         16  have them. Call the companies. They will be more

         17  than happy to show you them. And these vehicles are

         18  on the road in other parts of the country. They've

         19  proved they can work in other cities. Accessible CNG

         20  hybrid vehicles can work in other cities, they can

         21  work in New York too.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 I'll take any questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Council Member

         25  Yassky.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

          3  Chair Liu.

          4                 I just want to, just for the record,

          5  say I think your premise is just not correct. This

          6  bill does not in any way hold back the progress of

          7  accessibility in the taxis. And first, I want to be

          8  clear, you know, I think this Committee, I don't

          9  serve on this Committee, but I think this Committee,

         10  and Chairman Liu in particular, have pushed forward

         11  the accessibility issue extraordinarily

         12  aggressively.

         13                 In terms of this bill, I think you're

         14  absolutely right that the issues don't, should not

         15  be seen as opposed, and, frankly, that's why I find

         16  your testimony a little distressing. I don't see

         17  them as opposed. I think we can move forward on

         18  environmental and clean air, and we can move forward

         19  on accessibility, and there is just no reason to see

         20  them as opposed.

         21                 What this bill does is tell the TLC

         22  that they have to authorize, for the existing cab

         23  owners out there, that they can go hybrid if they

         24  want. That actually puts it in some ways on par with

         25  disabled access cabs in that they have that option
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          2  today.

          3                 Now, I agree with you, frankly, that

          4  the option isn't good enough. It's a first step,

          5  what we're doing today. We've got to move forward on

          6  making sure the fleet goes in the direction we want.

          7  But I just think it's a big mistake to see them as

          8  opposite. So, I want to disagree with the premise of

          9  your testimony.

         10                 MR. HARRIS: Well, to quickly respond

         11  to that, number one is that the issue of the CNG

         12  vehicles, if you support accessible vehicles, number

         13  one, why did your bill not mention accessible

         14  vehicles? It only mentions CNG.

         15                 And number two, right now the TLC

         16  doesn't have that option. The medallions that were

         17  auctioned off, those 27 medallions, can be used for

         18  accessible vehicles. A company that wants to replace

         19  an existing vehicle cannot use an accessible

         20  vehicle. They have to own an accessible --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Your point is taken,

         22  Mr. Harris.

         23                 MR. HARRIS: My point is saying that

         24  you're incorrect --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: No, your point is
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          2  taken. And let me just state for the record, to make

          3  it very clear, the medallions that were auctioned

          4  off that are restricted to be used on wheelchair

          5  accessible vehicles, they're being used, and they're

          6  on the road, and the vehicles are available.

          7                 Our problem right now is actually a

          8  very simple and clearcut and effective bill, and

          9  that is to address the problem that the 27

         10  medallions that have been sold that are required to

         11  be affixed to clean air vehicles, those vehicles are

         12  not available. And they're not available, not

         13  because they're not available in the market, they're

         14  not available because the TLC has not approved the

         15  specifications of those vehicles. And what we're

         16  doing is we're pushing through Council Member

         17  Yassky's bill, which I proudly co-sponsor, we're

         18  pushing the TLC to move quicker so that we can get

         19  those clean air vehicles on the road. And that's all

         20  we're doing here.

         21                 As far as making taxis accessible to

         22  people who use wheelchairs and scooters, that is

         23  something that we absolutely do want to do. And

         24  we'll push forward with that as quickly as we can.

         25  We look forward to continuing our work with the
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          2  Taxis For All Campaign.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. HARRIS: Thank you. And I look

          5  forward to you adding yourself to the sponsorship

          6  for Intro. 84 then.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is there anybody

          8  else who would like to testify on Intro. 642-A?

          9                 Thank you very much. We are going to

         10  recess this Committee. There are additional voters

         11  who will be coming on board to cast a ballot.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 12:45 p.m.)
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          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 16th day of June 2005.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

                                                            125

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

